



Table of Contents

Sr. no.	Contents	Page no.
0.	Getting Started Guide	1
1.	Log in to the platform	1
2.	Go to System configurations	4
3.	Update the General settings > Basic tab	5
4.	Update the General settings > English tab	8
5.	Update the Logo library	10
6.	Update the SEO & Tag manager tab	13
7. 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8	Configure the Third-party APIs Live chat API Facebook login API Apple login API Microsoft text translator API Google reCAPTCHA API Google Maps API Google Analytics API Google login API	17 17 18 19 19 20 20 20 21 22
8. 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6 8.7 8.8 8.9 8.10 8.11 8.12	Update the Common settings Miscellaneous settings New user account settings Report escalation settings Wallet withdrawal settings Review settings Notification settings Job module settings Requests settings Dynamic filter settings Contact detail settings List filter settings Service module settings	24 24 25 26 27 27 28 29 33 34 34 34 34 35 36



8.13	Service package approval settings	37
8.14	Display name settings	37
8.15	Direct booking settings	38
8.16	Sponsored freelancer settings	39
9.	Update the Email & SMTP settings	36
10.	Update the Freelancer settings	40
11.	Update the Website commission settings	41
11.1	Default site commission	42
12.	Configure the payment methods	44
12.1	Bank transfer (payIn)	46
12.2	Stripe (payIn)	49
12.3	PayPal standard (payIn)	50
12.4	Authorize.Net (payIn)	51
12.5	PayGate (payIn)	53
12.6	Paystack (payIn)	54
12.7	PayPal payout	56
12.8	Stripe connect	62
13.	Cancellation rules	65
14.	Discount coupons	69
15.	Create categories & subcategories	59
16.	Create skills	65
17.	Create soft skills	69
18.	Create spoken languages	73
19.	Create cities	77
20.	Set up the Freelancer registration form's dynamic	82
	tabs, sections and fields	
20.1	Create the dynamic tabs	83
20.2	Create the dynamic sections	88
20.3	Create the dynamic fields	92
21.	Add freelancers from your end	103
22.	Sponsored freelancer	121



23.	Ready-to-go service packages	126
23.1	Service types	126
23.2	Dynamic fields	130
23.3	Set up services	140
23.4	Service plans	150
23.5	Service package requests	154
22.	You are set to begin!	158



Getting Started Guide

Once you purchase the product, you will be provided with a platform that is blank (no information in any field and list) or that has the FATbit dummy content (depending on the option you selected during the platform installation).

Before you can publish your platform and begin business, you are required to set up the platform via the admin panel.

Setting up includes updating all your business details, updating the main settings, configuring all the required third-party APIs, and creating the information required for clients and freelancers to join the platform.

This step by step guide will help you with everything you need, to get started with the Yo!Gigs platform.

1. Log in to the platform

Open a web browser and in the address field, type in your platform's URL followed by the path /admin to access the login page.



For instance, if your platform's name is Yo!Gigs, and the domain URL is demo.yo-gigs.com, your platform's admin panel login page URL will be https://demo.yo-gigs.com/admin.

The login form will appear.



Yo!Gigs		
Welcome	Admin	
Username		
Username		
Password		
Password		
Remember me	Forgot password?	
Sign i	n	

Fill in the fields with your credentials (provided after you purchase the product):

- Username*: Enter your username.
- Password*: Enter your password.
- **Remember me:** Turn **on** remember you.

this toggle switch to enable the system to

When this feature is activated, if you close the window without signing out, the next time you come back, you will be signed in again automatically.

Leave this off or turn it off

to disable this feature.



Do not turn on the **Remember me** toggle switch, if you are logging in on a public or shared computer. Also, it is advised to not turn this on when signing in through computers you don't use often and cannot lock to protect your browser.



This feature is only visible if it has been activated under the **Settings > System** configurations > Remember me tab.

Once done, click **Sign in**.

This will direct you to the admin dashboard.





2. Go to System configurations

Hover over the **hamburger menu button** to reveal the vertical navigation bar. Then, go to **Settings** and select **System configurations**.

Yo!Gigs	≡
⊱⊖ Freelancer	\sim
CMS	\sim
ঠ্ট Settings	^
System configurations]
Discount coupons	

This will direct you to the **System configurations** page, which allows you to update several general configuration settings of the website.

System configurations Configure the general system settings that will govern most of the operations of the platform.			\bigotimes		
▲ To setup third-party APIs, refer to our third party API guides f	To setup third-party APIs, refer to our third party API guides for step by step guidance.				
Home / System configurations					
General settings	Basic English Arabic				
Logo library					
Third-party APIs	Site owner's email*				
Common settings	Enter the email of this platform's owner (also called add email)	nın's email an	d if you are	e the own	er, your

On the left-side of the screen, there is a vertical navigation panel, listing all the system configuration categories.

Select the settings you want to update from the vertical tab section and the respective form will appear on the right-side panel.



3. Update the General settings > Basic tab

Update the **General settings**, which includes updating your business profile details. This form opens by default when you open the **System configurations** page.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the **Basic** tab, followed by the default language **(English)** tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Basic English A	rabic
Site owner's email*	
	Enter the email of this platform's owner (also called admin's email and if you are the owner, your email)
Telephone number	
	Enter your business' telephone number that will be displayed with the contact us content at the front end.
Default site language	English 🗸
	Select the default language of the website from the list of active languages in the system.
Default site currency	United States Dollar (USD) 🗸
	Select your website's default currency from the list of active currencies in the system.

Update the following:

- Site owner's email: Enter/update the business email address. This information is displayed on the contact us page.
- **Telephone number:** Enter your business telephone number.

This number will be displayed on the contact us page, and the home page footer.



• Default site language: Select the default language of the website.

To do this, click the field and select the language from the dropdown list.



The dropdown list will have only those languages that have been added and activated on the platform (the ones you purchase when purchasing the platform). To add more languages, contact the support team.

• Default site currency: Select the default currency of the website.

To do this, click the field and select the currency from the dropdown list.



Manage the list of currencies under **Settings > System currencies**.

Scroll down to update the next fields.

Country	Hungary 🗸
	Select the country in which your website is operating (in which your business is registered).
Privacy Policy page	Privacy Policy 🗸
	Select the CMS page from the list that will be displayed as the Privacy Policy page.
Terms & Conditions page	Terms & Conditions 🗸
	Select the CMS page from the list that will be displayed as the Terms & Conditions page.
Cookies policy page	Privacy Policy 🗸
	Select the CMS page that will be displayed as the Cookies policy page at the front end.
	Display cookies policy text
	Activate to display the cookies policies section on the front end.
	Save changes

• **Country:** Select the country in which your business is registered.

To do this, click the field and a dropdown list with all the countries will appear.

Choose accordingly.



Manage the list of countries under User preferences > Countries.

• **Privacy Policy page:** Select the content page to be displayed as the **Privacy Policy** page from the dropdown list. Click the field and a list of options appear.





The pages provided as options in the dropdown list can be created under CMS > Content pages.

• Terms & Conditions page: Select the content page to be displayed on the Terms & Conditions page from the dropdown list. Click the field and a list of options appear.



The pages provided as options in the dropdown list can be created under CMS > Content pages.

• **Cookies policy page:** Select the content page to be displayed as the **Cookies Policy page** from the dropdown list. Click the field and a list of options appear.

This page will be displayed when someone clicks on the **Cookies Policy** link provided at the front end with the **Accept Cookies pop-up**.



The pages provided as options in the dropdown list can be created under CMS > Content pages.

• **Display cookies policy text:** Check mark this to display the cookies policy section at the front end.

Click Save changes to update everything.



4. Update the General settings > English tab

Click **English** to go to the default language data tab (English tab, since **English** is set as the default language).

Basic	English Arabic	
	Business name	
	From name (on email)	Enter the name of your business (which will also be the website's name)
	Address	Enter the name that will be displayed on emails sent from the system to any user, including you.
		Enter your business registered address, which will also be displayed on the contact us page.
	Cookies policy text	
		Enter the text that will be displayed at the front end, asking users to read the policy and accept the cookies.
		Auto-translate to other languages
		Save changes

Update the following:

- **Business name:** Enter the name of the business. This name will be displayed in many places on the platform.
- From name (on email): Enter the name (sender's name) that will be used with the email sent from the platform to any user.
- Address: Enter your registered business address.
- **Cookies policy text:** Add the text that will be displayed with the Cookies Policy link asking the users to Accept the Cookies or set their cookie preferences.



• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language data automatically. With this, the data under the secondary language data tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft Translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System Configurations** > <u>Third-Party API</u> has been configured.

Leave this as it is to fill the secondary language data on your own (since there is only one secondary language - Arabic - there is only one tab next).

Click Save changes.

i

The next tabs after this are the secondary language tab (for example, Arabic) and will all have the same fields (as in the English tab). You can edit the details for this language and save it, or simply use the **Auto-translate** option (at the bottom of the form), click **Save changes** and move on.

However, you can also skip the secondary language data tab (if you do not want to fill it out at the moment or do not find it important), and simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and move to the next step.



5. Update the Logo library

Go to the Logo library, to update the website's logo and favicon.

Home / System configurations		
General settings	English Arabic	
Logo library	Website logo	
Third-party APIs	Image disclaimer: Set up the logo for the website's header	
Common settings	section (front-end) and for every user's dashboard (including freelancers and clients).	•
Email & SMTP		
Freelancer settings		Click here to upload
Discussion forum	Website favicon	
SEO & Tag manager	Image disclaimer: Set up the logo to be displayed beside the website title on the browser tab.	•
Maintenance & SSL		
Remember me		
PWA settings		Click here to upload

• Website logo: Upload the business logo. This will be displayed on every section of the platform.

To upload it, hover over the Click here to upload field, and click it.



Select the image from your system and upload it.





To edit the image (change it), click the **edit button** on the upper-right corner of the image section. Select the image from the system and upload it.

To delete the image, click the **delete button** on the upper-right corner of the image section.

• Website favicon: Upload a website favicon image to be displayed beside the website title on the browser tab.

a

A favicon is a graphic image (icon) associated with a particular web page and/or website.

To upload it, hover over the Click here to upload field, and click it.



Select the image from your system and upload it.





To edit the image (change it), click the **edit button** on the upper-right corner of the image section. Select the image from the system and upload it.

To delete the image, click the **delete button** on the upper-right corner of the image section.

Images are uploaded directly on the platform, hence, there is no **Save changes** button under this form.

Upload the images for the other languages as well by visiting the respective language tab.



6. Update the SEO & Tag manager tab

Go to **SEO & Tag manager** to add the site tracker code, which is important for the GA4 API to work.

This tab also allows you to update the Google Tag Manager details and some other settings, that help with the SEO of the platform.

Home / System configurations		
General settings	Site tracking	
Logo library	Site tracking	
Third-party APIs		Activate language code for website URLs
		Example of site URLs for different languages: demo.yogigs.com/en
Common settings		
Email & SMTP	Site tracker code	
Freelancer settings		
Discussion forum		
SEO & Tag manager		The site tracker script is used to track and analyze the data of those visiting the platform. The data is received from Google Analytics, which then works with this script to offer the results. http://www.google.com/analytics/
Maintenance & SSL		
	Google Tag Manager	

i

You DO NOT have to update all the third-party APIs under this section. Update only those third-party APIs that you need and then click **Save changes**.

This form is divided into two sections. Scroll down to view each section and update it accordingly:

6.1 Site tracking

A tracking code is a small snippet of code that is usually implemented as JavaScript in the HTML source code of a website.

These lines of code allow you to analyze the flow of visitors to the platform and the activities of users. This site tracker code can be obtained from the Google Analytics (GA) platform.

This code is important for Google Analytics to track the platform. However, it is different from the Google Analytics API.



The Google Analytics API is completely dependent on the site tracking code, and will work only if you have added the site tracking code under this section and then configured the GA API under the <u>Third-party APIs tab</u>.



Site tracking	
	Allow language-specific storefront URLs Example of site URLs for different languages: demo.yogigs.com/en
Site tracker code	
	The site tracker script is used to track and analyze the data of those visiting the platform. The data is received from Google Analytics, which then works with this script to offer the results. http://www.google.com/analytics/

Update the following under this section:

• Allow language-specific storefront URLs: Checkmark this feature if you want to have website URLs in different languages.

Once activated, you can edit the URLs for each language option under the SEO > URL rewriting submodule.

The URL Rewriting form will have a field for each language's custom URL (as shown in the image below).

Rewrite URL	×
Original URL*	
listing/job-detail/121	
Custom URL [English]* Technical-writer-Large-project-121	
Custom URL [Arabic]*	

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



The number of custom URL fields will depend on the number of languages that the website is available in (for example, in this case, the website is available in only two languages, so there are only two custom URL fields).

Deselect or leave this feature unchecked, if you want the platform to have only one custom URL for all languages.

.

If you do not add a custom secondary-language URL under <u>URL Rewriting</u> after activating this, each default language-specific URL will have a language segment in it for the secondary language.

For example, the URL in the default language will be <u>demo.yogigs.com/</u> and the same URL for Arabic will be <u>demo.yogigs.com/ar/</u>.

• Site tracker code: Enter the site tracker code generated from Google Analytics to analyze the flow and activities of visitors at the front end of the website.

To generate the code, follow the steps shared in the guide - [Yo!Gigs - Google <u>Analytics API and Site Tracker Setup Guide</u>]. From the downloaded file, copy the code and paste it in this field.

6.2 Google Tag Manager

Google Tag Manager is a tag management system (TMS) that allows you to quickly and easily update measurement codes and related code fragments collectively known as tags on your website.

Google Tag Manager	
Head script	
Body script	Enter the code generated for Google Tag Manager to configure it.
	Enter the code generated for Google Tag Manager to configure it.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



This is a part of Google Analytics and helps in transporting the data to Google Analytics that is then used to track the traffic and measure the engagement on the website.

Update the following:

- Head script: Enter the Head script. Copy the head script from the Google Tag Manager platform and paste it here.
- **Body script:** Enter the Body script. Copy the body script from the Google Tag Manager platform and paste it here.

To generate the code, follow the steps shared in the guide - [Yo!Gigs - Google Tag Manager Setup Guide].

Once done, click **Save changes** to update the details.



7. Configure the Third-party APIs

Go to **Third-party APIs**, to set up the various third-party APIs that will help run the website smoothly including Google Maps, FB pixel and so on, under this form.

This form is divided into eight sections. Scroll down to view each section and update it accordingly:

Home / System configurations	
General settings	
Logo library	Live chat API
Third-party APIs	Live chat code
Common settings	

You DO NOT have to update all the third-party APIs under this section. Update only those third-party APIs that you need and then click **Save changes**.

7.1 Live chat API

i

Configure and activate the live chat API on the platform, where a live support chat section will be visible on the front end of the platform to help users reach out to you faster and get solutions easily.

Live chat API	
Live chat code	
	Enter the live shot exist/and a provided by the 2rd party API to configure it on
	Enter the live chat script/code provided by the 3rd party API to configure it on the platform.
Activate live chat feature	Yes No Select 'yes' to activate the live chat feature on the platform.



To do this, update the following:

• Live chat code: Generate and enter the live chat code or script to activate the live chat feature on the platform.

To generate the API key, follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- Live chat API Setup guide].

• Activate live chat feature: Select 'Yes' to activate the live chat feature and select 'No' to leave it inactive.



Ensure you update this setting after adding the live chat code in the field above to activate the feature on the platform.

Click Save changes to update it.

7.2 Facebook login API

Configure the Facebook social login API to allow users to use their Facebook credentials to log into or register on the platform.

Facebook login API	
Facebook app ID	
	Enter the application ID generated for configuring the Facebook login feature on the platform.
Facebook app secret	
	Enter the Facebook secret key generated to authenticate and activate the Facebook login feature on the platform.

Follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- Facebook Login API Setup Guide] to generate the configuration keys and details.

Once generated, update the following:

- Facebook app ID*: Enter the generated key.
- Facebook app secret*: Enter the generated key.

Click Save changes to update it.



7.3 Apple login API

Configure the Sign in with Apple API to allow users to sign into or register on your platform using their Apple credentials.

Apple login API	
Apple client ID	

Generate the client ID key and add it in this field. To generate the key, follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- Apple Sign In API Setup Guide].

Click Save changes to update it.

7.4 Microsoft text translator API

Configure the Microsoft translator text API to activate the auto-translate feature on the platform, which is used to translate text from one language to another in real-time.

Microsoft text translator API	
Subscription key	Enter the subscription key generated to activate the Microsoft text
	translator API.

Generate the key for Microsoft text translator API by following the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- Microsoft Translator Text API Setup Guide].

Enter the generated key in the Subscription key field.

Click Save changes to update it.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform.
An asterisk (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.
The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



7.5 Google reCAPTCHA API

Google reCAPTCHA v2 helps you detect abusive traffic on your website without creating any user friction.

A puzzle is shared with users when they are about to make any major changes like change their password, log into their account and so on.

Based on the puzzle results, a score is calculated and can be analyzed on the reCAPTCHA v2 dashboard. This score will help you take appropriate action, if needed.

On Yo!Gigs, when activated, the Google reCAPTCHA feature is used on the sign up form, forgot password form and other forms (at the front end).

Google reCAPTCHA A	PI
Site key	
	Enter the application site key generated to configure the Google reCAPTCHA API.
Secret key	
	Enter the application secret key generated for Google reCAPTCHA to configure it.

To generate the keys for the Google reCAPTCHA API, follow the steps shared on -[Yo!Gigs- Google reCAPTCHA v2 API Setup Guide].

Once generated, update the following:

- Site key: Enter the site key generated.
- Secret key: Enter the secret key generated.

Click Save changes to update it.

7.6 Google Maps API

Configure the Google Maps API to embed Google Maps on your website.



This will allow users to detect their location, add their address easily and a lot more.

Google Maps API	
Site key	Enter the Google Maps API key generated from the Google Maps platform. This feature is used to get a user's current location.

To generate the API key for Google Maps, follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs-Google Map API Setup Guide].

Then, enter it in this field. Click Save changes to update it.

7.7 Google Analytics API

Configure the Google Analytics API to extract the required Google Analytics tracking data and display the results on your dashboard (admin dashboard).



This API will only work if you have added the site tracker code under <u>SEO & Tag manager</u>.

Points to note:

• The Google Analytics platform helps track the traffic of your platform and each user's activities, once you add the site tracking code on your platform (under <u>SEO & Tag manager</u>).

The tracked reports are reviewed on the Google Analytics dashboard.

• To view the traffic report on your dashboard (admin dashboard) as well, you will have to configure the GA4 API (this API).

This API will help in extracting the tracked data from the Google Analytics platform, and display the applicable information under the Traffic widget on your dashboard.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



Google Analytics	
Google Analytics property	
ID	Click 'steps' to get the steps to generate the GA4 property ID.
Google service account	
JSON	
	Click 'steps' to get the steps to generate the GA4 service account details.

To generate the key and IDs for Google Analytics, follow the steps shared on -[Yo!Gigs- Google Analytics API and Site Tracker Setup Guide].

Once generated, update the following:

• Google Analytics property ID: Enter the Google Analytics property ID obtained.



Click "steps" in the label below this field to view the steps to obtain the Google Analytics property ID.

• **Google service account JSON:** Enter the Google service account JSON obtained.



Click "steps" in the label below this field to view the steps to obtain the Google service account JSON.

Click Save changes to update it.

7.8 Google login API

Configure the Google login API to allow users to log in or register on the platform using their Google credentials.



Google login API	
Google client JSON	
	Paste the Google JSON code generated here. Google credentials added are not authorized. Click here to authorize.

Follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- Google Login API Setup Guide] to generate the configuration keys and details.

Once generated, add the **Google client JSON** obtained in this field.

Then, click the "click here to authorize" link to synchronize the platform with the updated API.

Once done, click **Save changes** to update the details.



8. Update the Common settings

Go to **Common settings** to update the various settings that govern all the main features of the platform.

System configurations Configure the general system settings that will govern	most of the operations of the platfor	m.	쯥	\bigotimes	\oplus	
To setup third-party APIs, refer to our third party API guides for	step by step guidance.					
Home / System configurations						
General settings						
Logo library	Miscellaneous settings					
Third-party APIs	Default no. of items listed per					
Common settings	page*	Set the no. of records displayed per page (both front er	nd and back	end)		
Email & SMTP						
Freelancer settings	Minimum gift card amount*	Enter the minimum amount that a gift card should be or	 :			
Discussion forum						
SEO & Tag manager	New user account settings					

This form is divided into eleven sections.

Scroll down to view each section and update it accordingly:



Fill the information of every mandatory field before clicking **Save changes** under this form, else an error will appear.

8.1 Miscellaneous settings

Miscellaneous setting	S
Default no. of items listed per page*	Set the no. of records displayed per page (both front end and back end)
Minimum gift card amount*	Enter the minimum amount that a gift card should be of.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



• **Default no. of items listed per page*:** Enter the number of items (records) that will be listed on a page, anywhere on the platform.



For instance, if you enter 10 in this field, all the records list pages will display 10 records at once.

• Minimum gift card amount*: Enter the minimum amount a gift card can be of.

8.2 New user account settings

New user account settings		
	Activate admin approval after registration When activated, admin will need to approve the registration (sign-up) request of each user. (Users cannot log in before the request is approved.)	
	Activate email verification after registration When activated, users will need to verify their email address that was provided during the registration process.	
	Activate auto login after registration When activated, users will be automatically logged in to their accounts once the registration is complete.	
	Activate to send a welcome email after registration When activated, users will receive a welcome email after registering on the platform.	
	Activate to allow users to register as a company When activated, users (both clients and freelancers) will be able to register as a company on the platform.	

• Activate admin approval after registration: Check mark this feature to manually approve each user after their registration.



A user cannot log into the website after the registration unless and until you approve their registration request. The users and user requests can be managed under **Users > Platform users**.

• Activate email verification after registration: Check mark this feature to make the process of email verification after the registration mandatory for a user.



The user will not be able to sign in without verifying their email after registering on the website portal.

• Activate auto login after registration: Check mark this feature to allow the users to automatically log into the portal after registration. With this, the user will be taken to the dashboard automatically after registration.



This will work only if:

- The Activate email verification after registration feature is deactivated.
- The Activate admin approval after registration feature is deactivated.
- Activate to send welcome mail after registration: Check mark this feature to send a welcome email to users, once they register.



The welcome email will be sent using the predefined email template.

Review and edit the template under CMS > Email templates.

• Activate to allow users to register as a company: Check mark this feature to allow users (both clients and freelancers) to register as a company on the platform.

8.3 Report escalation settings

Report escalation set	ings
Escalate reported issue	
duration	Enter the hours (duration) after which, users can escalate the reported issue to the admin (when no agreement has been reached).

• **Escalate reported issue duration:** Enter the hours (duration) after which, users can escalate the reported issue to the admin (when no agreement has been reached).

8.4 Wallet withdrawal settings

Wallet withdrawal set	tings
Minimum wallet withdrawal amount [USD]*	Enter a minimum wallet withdrawal amount that users can request to withdraw from their wallets.
Minimum interval [days]*	Enter the minimum interval (in days) between two wallet withdrawal requests.



- **Minimum wallet withdrawal amount [Default currency]*:** Enter a minimum wallet withdrawal amount that users can request to withdraw from their wallets.
- **Minimum interval [days]*:** Enter the minimum interval (in days) between two wallet withdrawal requests.

For instance, if you enter the value as 2 in this field and a user has already placed a wallet withdrawal request today, they will have to wait for 2 days after when they can then place another wallet withdrawal request.

8.5 Review settings

Review settings	
Allow users to give	Ves No
feedback	Select 'yes' to allow both clients and freelancers to share their feedback for a completed job.
Default feedback status	Pending O Approved
	Set the default feedback status of every new feedback added on the platform. If you select 'pending', you will have to manually approve (under job feedback) the feedback to display at the front end.

• Allow users to give feedback: Select 'Yes' to allow both clients and freelancers to share their feedback for a completed job.

Select 'No' to deactivate the feedback module, where no user will be able to share feedback for a completed job.

• **Default feedback status:** Set the default feedback status of every new feedback added on the platform.

If you select 'pending,' you will have to manually approve (under job feedback) the feedback to display at the front end.

If you select 'approved,' all the feedback added will be directly posted at the front end for the respective user's account.



8.6 Notification settings

Notification settings	
Activate notifications for unread messages	Yes No Select 'yes' to activate email notifications for unread messages.
Unread messages notification duration [mins]*	Enter the duration after (a message is sent but read) which an email notification will be sent for an unread message. Recommended duration: 10 mins
Delete attachment duration limit [mins]*	Enter the duration until when users can delete sent attachments of a message.

• Activate notifications for unread messages: Select 'Yes' to activate email notifications for unread messages. With this, when a message is not read by the user, they will get an email notification about the message.

Select 'No' to not send email notifications for unread messages. With this, users who have unread messages, will have to log into the platform to find out about them, since no email notification will be sent letting them know that a new message has been received.

• Unread messages notification duration [mins]*: Enter the duration (from when a message is received) after which an email notification will be sent for an unread message to the respective user.

Recommended duration is 10 mins. However, you can define a duration that works best for you.

• Delete attachment duration limit [mins]*: Enter the duration (from when the attachment is received) until when users can delete sent attachments of a message.



8.7 Job module settings

Job module settings	
Activate the job post module	Yes No Select 'yes' to activate the job post module, allowing clients to post jobs. Select 'no' if you want to keep the platform simple, which lists freelancers and clients, with no job posts.
Allow only freelance companies to bid on big projects	Yes No Select 'yes' to allow only freelance companies (freelancers who have joined as a company) to bid or apply for big projects. Select 'no' to allow both individual freelancers and companies to apply or bid on big projects.
Job cancellation duration limit [hours]*	Enter the hours until when a user can cancel the job. The default value is 0, which means forever (infinite time).

• Activate the job post module: Select 'Yes' to activate the job post module, allowing clients to post jobs.

Select 'No' if you want to keep the platform simple, which lists freelancers with no job posts. In this situation, clients will be able to find freelancers and work with them directly.

• Allow only freelance companies to bid on big projects: Select 'Yes' to allow only freelance companies (freelancers who have joined as a company) to bid or apply for big projects.

Select 'No' to allow both individual freelancers and companies to apply or bid on big projects.



If you have not activated the feature 'Activate to allow users to register as a company' under the new user account settings section of this form, selecting 'yes' will simply restrict all freelancers from bidding on big projects.

Scroll down to update the next settings:



Job listing display	✓ Open
status(es)	Assigned
	In process
	Completed
	Closed
	Canceled
List data according to 'skill'	Yes No
& 'category'	Select 'yes' to display the job posts and freelancers for the selected skill and job category.
List data according to job	Yes No
category	Select 'yes' to display the job posts and freelancers for the selected category.

• Job listing display status(es): Select the status(es) of job posts that will be listed on the job listing page, at the front end.

To explain better, if you select all statuses in this list, every job that has ever been posted, regardless of if the job has been completed, is in process, was canceled, was closed, and so on, they all will be listed on the job listing page.

• List data according to 'skill' & 'category': Select 'Yes' to display the job posts and freelancers for the selected skill and job category.

To explain how it works, if a freelancer is looking for a job and this feature has been activated, the job posts will be listed based on the respective freelancer's skills and job category.

Select '**no**' to display all the freelancers and job posts regardless of their skill set and job category.

• List data according to job category: Select 'Yes' to display the job posts and freelancers for the selected category.

To explain how it works, if a freelancer is looking for a job and this feature has been activated, the job posts will be listed based on the respective freelancer's job category.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



Select 'No' to display all the freelancers and job posts regardless of their job category.

Scroll down to update the next settings:

List data according to	Yes O No
user's current city	Select 'yes' to activate the 'city' filter to list the freelancers and job listings accordingly.
Activate the Radius system	Yes O No
& Geolocation feature	Select 'yes' to activate the radius system, which will be used to display data (in listings) around the set radius of the user's current location. It also activates the Geolocation feature, where users get address suggestions when searching for a location.
Radius range min	0
	Enter the radius min distance in kilometers. If you set the min radius as 5 km, all the jobs located at least 5 km from the freelancer's location will be displayed to the freelancer.
Radius range max	20
	Enter the radius max distance in kilometers. If you set the max radius as 20 km, all the jobs located at most 20 km from the freelancer's location will be displayed to the freelancer.

• List data according to user's current city: Select 'Yes' to display the freelancers and job posts based on the user's currency city.

To explain how it works, if a freelancer is looking for a job and this feature has been activated, the job posts will be listed based on the respective freelancer's current city.



This is applicable only for the on-site (in-person) jobs.

Select 'No' to display all the freelancers and job posts regardless of the user's current location.

• Activate the Radius system & Geolocation feature: Select 'Yes' to activate the radius system, which will be used to display the listing data around the set radius of the user's current location.





To explain better, with this activated, freelancers will be able to view job posts that are around their area (falls within their current location's radius). Clients will be able to view the freelancers who are available around their area.

Additionally, activating this feature will make the radius filter visible to clients on the job listing page.

Define the radius range in the next field (radius range).

It also activates the geolocation feature that allows users to get suggestions when searching for an address (image below), and to allow the system to track their current location.

Type your location here *	
O Ably	×
Ably Asian Cuisine Noah Drive, Jasper, GA, USA	
Soft Pvt. Ltd. Sector 67, Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar, Punjab, India	
Ablynx Zwijnaarde science Park, Ghent, Belgium	
P Ably Event Sdn Bhd Hakka Avenue Estate, Kuching, Sarawak, Malaysia	
Ablyk Angren, Uzbekistan	
	powered by Google



The geolocation feature and radius feature will only work if you have configured the <u>Google Maps API</u> under Settings > System configurations > <u>Third-party APIs</u>.

Select 'No' to deactivate the location feature. With this, all job listings and freelancer listings will be displayed

• Radius range min: Enter the minimum radius in kilometers.



This field is accessible only if you selected 'Yes' for the 'Activate the Radius system & Geolocation feature' feature.

It affects listings only and does not impact suggestions shown under the address field.

If you set the min radius as 5 km, all the jobs at least 5 km of a freelancer's location will be displayed to the freelancer.

• Radius range max: Enter the maximum radius in kilometers.



This field is accessible only if you selected 'Yes' for the 'Activate the Radius system & Geolocation feature' feature.

It affects listings only and does not impact suggestions shown under the address field.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.


If you set the max radius as 20 km, all the jobs at most 20 km of a freelancer's location will be displayed to the freelancer.

8.8 Requests settings

Requests settings	
Activate approval for	Ves No
language request	Select 'yes' to allow users to request a spoken language, which can be approved or rejected by you. Select 'no' to allow users to add the spoken language directly to the platform.
Activate approval for skill	Yes No
request	Select 'yes' to allow users to request skills, which can be approved or rejected by you. Select 'no' to allow users to add skills directly to the platform.
Activate approval for soft	Ves No
skill request	Select 'yes' to allow users to request soft skills, which can be approved or rejected by you. Select 'no' to allow users to add soft skills directly to the platform.

• Activate approval for language request: Select 'Yes' to allow users to request a spoken language, which can be approved or rejected by you.



Manage all the spoken language requests under **Requests > <u>Spoken language</u>** <u>requests</u>.

Select 'No' to allow users to add the spoken language directly to the platform.

• Activate approval for skill request: Select 'Yes' to allow users to request skills, which can be approved or rejected by you.



Manage all the skill requests under **Requests** > <u>Skill requests</u>.

Select 'No' to allow users to add skills directly to the platform.

• Activate approval for soft skill request: Select 'Yes' to allow users to request soft skills, which can be approved or rejected by you.



i Manage all the soft skill requests under **Requests** > <u>Soft skill requests</u>.

Select 'No' to allow users to add soft skills directly to the platform.

8.9 Dynamic filter settings

Dynamic filter setting	S
Max no. of dynamic filters	
allowed*	Enter the maximum number of dynamic filters for freelancers' listings. Create dynamic filters while creating the freelancer registration form's fields.

• Max no. of dynamic filters allowed*: Enter the maximum number of dynamic filters that can be there on the freelancer listing page.



Create dynamic filters while creating the freelancer registration form's fields under **Freelancer > <u>Registration form's dynamic fields</u>**. Based on the number entered in this field, you will be able to create exactly these many dynamic filters.

The dynamic filters will help filtering the list of freelancers on the freelancer listing page.

8.10 Contact detail settings

Contact detail setting	S
Display user's contact	Yes No
details on their profile page	 Select 'Yes' to display a user's contact details on their front end profile page (applicable for freelancers and clients). When activated, anyone will be able to contact the respective user via their content details, regardless of if they are working together or not. Select 'No' to hide the contact details of users from their profile page. In this case, users won't be able to contact another user on the platform unless they are working with them.

• Display user's contact details on their profile page: Select 'Yes' to display each user's contact details on their profile detail page at the front end (applicable for both the freelancers and clients).



This will allow users to contact other users directly, regardless of if they are working together or not.

Select 'No' to hide each user's contact details from their profile detail page. In this case, users won't be able to contact another user on the platform unless they are working with them.

8.11 List filter settings

List filter settings			
Activate the filter	Yes	O No	
feature for lists	Select 'yes' to ac according to avai		feature where lists can be filtered

• Activate the filter feature for lists: Select 'Yes' to activate the filter feature, allowing users to filter lists and easily find relevant freelancers, jobs, or services.

Select 'No' to deactivate the filter feature. In this case, users will need to manually browse the listings.

8.12 Service module settings

Service module setting	gs	
Activate service module	O Yes	No
	Select 'Yes' to a platform.	activate the Read

• Activate service module: Select 'Yes' to activate the Ready-to-go service packages module, allowing freelancers to offer pre-defined service packages to the clients.

Upon activating this setting, the **Ready-to-go service packages** module along with its related submodules will appear on the left navigation panel.





Select 'No' to disable the module, preventing freelancers from creating or listing service packages. The module and its related submodules will be hidden from the panel.

8.13 Service package approval settings

Service package appr	oval settings			
Activate approval for	O Yes	No		
service packages			1	e package requests. ervice package requests.

• Activate approval for service packages: Select 'Yes' to make admin approval necessary before a freelancer can publish any new service added by them.

When this setting is activated, the admin will have to review all services added under the <u>Service package requests</u> submodule and either approve or reject them accordingly.



Select 'No' to allow freelancers to publish new services without requiring admin approval.

However, you can still review all added services under the Service list submodule.

8.14 Display name settings

Display name settings			
Display name according to	O Username	First name	Full name
	Select how a user's nam	ne will be displayed on the j	olatform.

- **Display name according to:** Select how the user's name will be displayed on the platform.
 - Username
 - First name
 - Full name



8.15 Direct booking settings

Direct booking setting	şs
Activate direct booking	Yes No
	Select 'Yes' to allow clients to book freelancers directly, based on the freelancer's availability
Direct booking maximum	
hours	Enter the maximum number of hours the client can book a freelancer.
Unschedule limit [hours]	
	Enter the duration within which freelancers can unschedule an in-process order.

• Activate direct booking: Select 'Yes' to allow clients to book freelancers directly based on the freelancer's availability.

Upon activating this setting, the **Direct booking orders** and **Direct booking subscription orders** submodule will appear on the left navigation panel under the **Orders** module.

Additionally, the clients can directly book the freelancers based on the availability set by the freelancers.

Select 'No' to deactivate this feature on the platform.

• **Direct booking maximum hours:** Enter the maximum number of hours a client can book a freelancer.

For instance, if set to 5 hours, clients will not be able to book freelancers for more than 5 hours at a time.

• Unschedule limit (hours) – Enter the duration within which freelancers can unschedule an in-process order.

For instance, if set to 2 hours, freelancers can cancel or reschedule an order within 2 hours of its scheduled start time.

After this time limit, the order will remain in process and cannot be unscheduled.



8.16 Sponsored freelancer settings

Sponsored freeland	er settings
Activate sponsored	Yes No
freelancer module	Select 'Yes' to activate the sponsored freelancer module, allowing freelancers to promote their profiles.
	Save changes

Activate sponsored freelancer module: Select 'Yes' to activate the sponsored freelancer module, allowing freelancers to get sponsored their profiles for better visibility.

Upon activating this setting, the <u>Sponsored freelancer</u> module along with its related submodule will appear on the left navigation panel.

Select 'No' to disable this feature, preventing freelancers from promoting their profiles.

Once everything has been updated, click Save changes.



Ensure all the mandatory fields are filled, else an error will appear and you won't be able to move forward.



9. Update the Email & SMTP settings

Go to **Email & SMTP settings** to activate the system email feature, where users (including you) are notified via a system email (email alert) about an action that affects their account.

For instance, when a client registers on the platform, if this feature has been configured, an alert email is sent to them about their registration on their registered email address, and an email is sent to you as well.

System configurations Configure the general system settings that will gover	n most of the operations of the platfor	n. 🗠 🖉	
▲ To setup third-party APIs, refer to our third party API guides f	or step by step guidance.		
Home / System configurations			
General settings			
Logo library	Email & SMTP settings		
Third-party APIs	From email*		
Common settings		Enter the email address that will be displayed as the 'from email' when a system any user, including you.	email is sent to
Email & SMTP	Reply to email*		
Freelancer settings	Reply to email	Enter the email address that users can reply to when a system email is sent.	
Discussion forum	Send system email alerts to users	Yes No	
SEO & Tag manager	Send system email alerts to users	Click here to send a test email. Clicking this will send a test email to - connect@	fethit.com
Maintenance & SSL			hatblacom
Remember me	Contact email*	Enter the contact email address, which will be displayed on the footer (Get in to	uch section) of
PWA settings		all the main pages at the front end – and on which, users can send their queries.	

Points to note

There are two types of email configurations that work on the platform:

- PHP (not recommended)
- SMTP (highly recommended to avoid any additional costs and hassle)

The PHP system will work only if your web server allows it, which happens only after it has been integrated into your server and code level.

And to configure this option, you only need to update the fields above the 'Activate SMTP email feature' setting, and leave the rest of the SMTP-related fields as it is.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



In case you want to use a third-party email service (SMTP), then you need to activate the SMTP email feature and configure it, by updating all the fields under this form.

With this clear, update the following:

• From email*: Enter the email address that will be used as the sender's email for all the emails sent from the platform to any user.



If you are activating the SMTP feature, ensure that this email address is the same as the one you used to get the SMTP details. If not, it will display an error.

And if you are using the PHP feature, ensure that this email is the same as added with the PHP code. If not, it will not work.

- **Reply to email*:** Enter the email address that users can reply to, when a system email is sent to them. This email will be displayed as the 'reply to email' in the email sent.
- Send system email alerts to users: Select 'Yes' to allow the system to send email alerts to users (including you).

Select 'No' if you do not want the system to send any email alerts. With this, users (and you) won't get any email notifications (alerts) from the platform.

• Click here to send a test email: Select this link to check if the email alert system is working or not, once you have added all the information and saved it using the Save changes button.



When clicked, a test email is sent to the site owner on their email address (as defined under Settings > System configurations > General settings).

- **Contact email:** Enter the contact email address that the users can send emails to when they want to contact the website owner.
 - All the queries received from the **Contact Us** form will be forwarded to this email address.
 - This email address is displayed on the footer section of all the main pages at the front end of the platform.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



For Clients	Get in touch
Find a Talent Browse Jobs	 ITC 3, Sector 67, Sahibzada Ajit Singh Nagar, Punjab 160062
	yogigs@dummyid.com
	+91 6284314570

If you are using the PHP server for sending the email alerts, then once you have added the above details, activated the email alert service and clicked **Save changes**, your work is done. Leave the rest of the fields and move to the next step.

However, to use the SMTP server, you need to update the next fields as well.

Scroll down to update the next fields:

Activate SMTP email feature	Yes No
	Select 'yes' to activate the SMTP email feature. Once you activate this, fill out the SMTP details in the fields below for it to work. All the SMTP details can be obtained from your host.
SMTP host	
	Enter the SMTP host email obtained from your selected SMTP server.
SMTP port	
	Enter the SMTP port value obtained from your selected SMTP server.
SMTP username	
	Enter the SMTP username generated. This is the email address for which you are adding the SMTP details.
SMTP password	
	Enter the SMTP password. This is the respective email address password.

• Activate SMTP email feature: Select 'Yes' to allow the system to use the SMTP server to send email alerts to users from the platform.

If activated:

• All the emails will be sent through this SMTP set up, and not PHP (where the emails are sent directly from your web server).



 Ensure that the data entered in the next field is right for the system to work. Obtain the SMTP details by following the steps shared - [Yo!Gigs- SMTP Email Settings Guide].

Once you activate this feature, ensure that all the SMTP details required (obtained from your SMTP provider) for this to work properly are updated in the NEXT fields.

Select 'No' if you are using the PHP server.

- **SMTP host:** Enter the SMTP host generated.
- **SMTP port:** Enter the SMTP port generated.
- SMTP username: Enter the SMTP username generated. This is the email address for which you are adding the SMTP details.
- SMTP password: Enter the SMTP password. This is the respective email address password.

Scroll down to update the last field:

SMTP secure protocol	O TLS	SSL
	Select the SMTF	secure protocol
	Save chang	es

- SMTP secure protocol: Select the option based on the settings received by the server. There are two options to select from:
 - TLS: Transport Layer Security (TLS) is the successor protocol to SSL (an improved version). It works in the same way as the SSL, using encryption to protect the transfer of data and information.
 - SSL: SSL stands for Secure Sockets Layer. It's the standard technology for keeping an internet connection secure and safeguarding any sensitive data that is being sent between two systems.



Select the SMTP secure protocol option shared by your SMTP provider.

Click Save changes to update all the details.



10. Update the Freelancer settings

Go to **Freelancer settings**, to define how many times a freelancer can attempt to join the platform (using the same email address).

System configurations Configure the general system settings that will govern	n most of the operations of the platfor	m.	쯥	\Diamond	\oplus	
▲ To setup third-party APIs, refer to our third party API guides for	or step by step guidance.					
Home / System configurations						
General settings						
Logo library	Freelancer settings					
Third-party APIs	Max attempts to apply as a					
Common settings	freelancer*	Enter the maximum number of times a user can reque: email address.	st to become a	a freelance	er, using the	e same
Email & SMTP						
Freelancer settings		Save changes				
Discussion forum						
SEO & Tag manager						

There is only one field under this form. Update it accordingly:

• Max attempts to apply as a freelancer*: Enter the maximum number of times a user can request to become a freelancer, using the same email address.

To explain its working, let us assume that you enter the value 3 in this field. In this case, a user can request to become a freelancer and get rejected three times at maximum (provided they are using the same email address to register as a freelancer).

And since the maximum attempts are 3 (in this example), they won't be able to register as a freelancer for the fourth time using the same email address.

Once done, click Save changes to update the setting.

With this, all the required settings under the **System configurations** will be updated.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



11. Update the Website commission settings

The next step is to update the website commission settings.

To do this, go to **Settings > Commission settings** to visit the **Commission settings** page.

	ion settings commission rates applicable globally, a	nd the freelancer-specific commission	쯥	\Diamond	
A Global cor	mmission applies to all the freelancers registered c	on the platform unless a specific commission rate i	s set for the use	er.	×
Home / Com	mission settings				① Add
Search					Help O
Sr. no	Freelancer	Job fees [%]	Actio	on	
1	Global commission	12.00	ľ	Ð	

Define the commission rate that will be charged by you (to the freelancers) on the platform.

There are two types of commission settings on the platform:

• **Default site commission:** Applicable for all the freelancers on the platform.

By default, the default site commission detail is listed on this page. You can only edit the default site commission rate, but you cannot delete it from the list or assign it to a user (freelancer).

This defined commission is used for those freelancers for whom no specific commission has been set.

• **Freelancer-specific commission:** Applicable for the respective freelancer for whom the commission rate is set.

This submodule allows you to define freelancer-specific commission rates. And once you define a freelancer-specific rate, this rate is given a higher priority and overrides the default site commission rate.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



To explain better, let us assume you set the default site commission as 5%, and create a freelancer-specific commission for a freelancer named 'Tony' as 7%.

In this case, Tony will be charged 7% commission for all jobs completed, while other freelancers (whose freelancer-specific commissions rates were not defined) will be charged 5% commission for all the jobs they complete.

In short, you can define different commission rates for all the freelancers on the platform.

However, since you are currently Getting started, and there are no freelancer profiles yet, you are only required to update the default site commission. You can return to this page later, once the platform has a few freelancers, to define freelancer-specific commission rates for them.

Default site commission

Click the edit button seide the Global commission entry.

The **Commission setup** form appears.

Commission setup	×
User's name	
Global commission	
Job commission fees [%]*	
0.00	
Save changes	

There are two fields under this form, one is editable and the other cannot be edited (since it is the global commission):



- User's name: This field will have the name global commission. This field is not editable.
- Job commission fees [%]: Enter the commission fee that will be charged for each job completed on the platform by the freelancer.

By default, this field will have the value 0. Change it as per your requirements.



Keep in mind that the value is a percentage value.

If you do not want to use this commission at all, then the best way around it is to keep the commission fee as 0.

Once done, click Save changes to update the details.

The form will automatically close and the commission rate will be updated accordingly.



Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



12. Configure the payment methods

The next step includes configuring the payment methods of the platform. To do this, go to **Settings > Payment methods**. This will direct you to the **Payment methods** page.

	ayment me onfigure variou		s to allow users to make payments and tr	ransactions convenie	ntly on the platform.	\bigotimes	\oplus	
▲	When live paym enter the live m	nent option is not se lode.	elected, the payments are transferred to the sandbo	ox account. This mode hel	ps you to test the payment function	ality without h	aving to	×
A	The configuration	on settings for both	n pay-in and pay-out payment methods are availab	le here at one place.				
Но	ome / Payme	nt methods				Payr	nent mode	0
		Sr. no	Payment method	Туре	Status	Action		
		1	Wallet (WalletPay) - (Active)	PayIn				
	÷	2	Bank transfer (BankTransferPay)	PayIn	0	ľ		
	¢	3	Stripe (StripePay)	PayIn	•	ľ		

Set up various payment methods that you want to offer to the users of the platform.

Yo!Gigs allows the users to complete transactions using a number of payment methods (third-party APIs) and the system's own digital wallet. By default, there are 10 payment methods integrated into the Yo!Gigs platform.

These payment methods are divided into three types:

• **PayIn:** These payment methods are displayed and used on the checkout page (when paying for a job, a gift card, and so on).

There are 7 payIn payment methods on the platform:

- PayPal standard
- Stripe
- Authorize.Net
- PayGate
- Paystack

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



- Bank transfer
- Wallet
- **Payout:** These payment methods are used by freelancers and clients (displayed on their dashboard) for requesting to withdraw funds from their wallet. When a request is made using any one of these payment methods, the amount requested is sent on the selected payout method.

There are 2 payout methods on the platform:

• **PayPal payout (Semi automatic method)** - A user can request to withdraw funds from their wallet into their PayPal account.

When this request is placed, the request will be listed under Users > Wallet withdrawal requests. You are required to visit this submodule, review the request and either accept or reject the request.

When you reject the request, the update is shared with the respective user and no action is taken on the amount.

When you accept the request, the amount is sent automatically to the user's PayPal account from your PayPal account (which you should have added under the PayPal payout settings) - and after the <u>set transaction fee</u> is deducted.

• **Bank payout (manual method)** - This payout method is marked as a manual method because you (the admin) will have to manually send the payment to the respective user's bank account using the bank details they shared.

Basically, the system cannot take any action for the bank transfer payment method.

Once a request is placed, it can be viewed under the Users > Wallet withdrawal requests submodule. If you approve the request, send the amount to the respective user's bank account (using the bank details they shared).

Remember to deduct the <u>transaction fee</u> you have set up from your end (from the total amount they requested) for the process since the system is not handling this process.

Once the amount has been sent from your side, update the request's status under Users > Wallet withdrawal requests.

• **Split payment:** This feature automates payment distribution, ensuring that each recipient receives their share instantly.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



There is only one split payment method incorporated into the platform.

• Stripe Connect (Split payment method) - This payment method automates payment distribution.

When a client makes a payment using **Stripe Connect**, the system automatically splits the payment between the freelancer and you (the admin). This eliminates the need for manual fund transfers.

To use Stripe Connect, you (the admin) must first configure the required settings under the <u>Stripe Connect settings</u>. Freelancers must also link their Stripe accounts to receive payments directly.

Since the payment is split and processed instantly, there is no need for withdrawal requests from freelancers when this method is used.

Configure and activate the payment methods you want for the platform via this page.

Points to note

- You have to configure at least one of the payment methods for the website to begin business.
- This is mainly because you (the admin) do not have a wallet on the platform, unlike other users.
- All the money received by any user can only be sent to your linked account (under that payment method) directly. This account can be your bank account, PayPal account or whatever payment method you have configured under this section.
- The platform also supports **Offline payment mode**, where transactions are handled outside the platform.
- So, if you do not have to configure an online payment method, you can activate **Offline payment mode** to start your business. However, in this case, you will be responsible for manually managing all financial transactions.

To control whether payments are processed within the platform or externally, you can set the **Payment mode** for your platform.



Payment mode

The Payment mode toggle switch, located at the upper right corner of the Payment methods page.

• Turn on this toggle switch to activate live payment mode, where payments can be made online using the third-party payment gateways that have been configured and activated.



If you have activated online Payment mode, you must <u>configure the payment</u> <u>methods</u> to process online transactions.

• Turn off this toggle switch to set the platform to offline mode. In this case, no payments are processed within the system, and all financial transactions must be handled externally by you.

Configure the payment method

If you have activated online payment mode, the next step is to configure the third-party payment methods available on the platform.

To do this, click the **edit button** *beside* a payment method to configure it.



The **Wallet payIn** method (it is a system wallet) and the **Bank payout** method (doesn't need to be configured as you will have to manually transfer the amount via your bank) don't have this button beside them.

Additionally, every other payment method has a different configuration process and a **different form**.

a. Bank transfer (payIn)

Bank transfer (or wire transfer) is a payment method that allows users to transfer money to any bank account around the world.

Click the edit button 🖉 and the Bank transfer settings form appears.



Bank transfer Settings	×
Account details*	
	li
Bank transfer (or wire transfer) is a payment method that allows consu	imers
to transfer money to any bank account in the world. The user has to us	se
this information and make the transfer (outside the platform). And the	n,
share the unique transaction number or reference number and its	
additional details, on the payment page, which is sent to you to confirr	n the
transaction.	
Save changes	

There is only one field under this form, edit accordingly:

• Account details*: Enter your bank account details including the bank name, account number, account name, IFSC/SWIFT code, and any other information that is important to make a transfer as per your country's norms.

Click Save changes.

The details will be updated and the form will close automatically.



How does it work?

The bank transfer method is the only one that is not managed by the system and has to be managed manually.

When a user selects the bank transfer payment method to make a payment, they will be directed to a form displaying your bank details (as shown below).

Complete your order by providing below	the requested details
Payable amount : \$ 100.00	Order number: 0000043
Bank code (Bankleitzahl): 20811008 domestic account number: 1039531801 IBAN: AL90208110080000001039531801	
Transaction ID*	
Transaction details*	
Transaction receipt	
Choose file No file chosen	
Supported file formats are - png, jpg, jpeg, txt, doc, docx, pdf	

The user will have to manually make the payment to your bank account using the information provided.

Once the payment has been made, the user will have to add the following details in this form:

- Transaction ID*: Enter the transaction ID.
- Transaction details*: Enter any additional transaction details.
- **Transaction receipt:** Upload the transaction receipt as proof of payment by clicking the 'Choose file' button, selecting an image from the system and uploading it.



Once done, click Submit details.

These details are then added to the order details page. Review the transaction details shared under the respective job order details page (**Orders > All orders > View icon**).

b. Stripe (payIn)

Stripe is a payment service provider that you can use to accept dozens of payments through debit and credit cards from anywhere around the globe. Stripe charges a fee on each transaction.

Click the edit button and the Stripe settings form appears.

Stripe Settings	×
Secret key*	
Publishable key*	
Developer Guides – click this to learn more about the API	
Stripe - Top payments infrastructure for the internet	
Millions of businesses of all sizes – from startups to large enterprises -	- use

Follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- Stripe Keys Setup Guide] to generate the configuration keys.

Enter the generated keys in this form:

- Secret key*: Enter the secret key.
- Publishable key*: Enter the publishable key.





Click the '**Developer guides**' link below the field. This will direct you to Stripe developer's help section allowing you to learn more about it.

Click **Save changes**. The details will be updated and the form will close automatically.

c. PayPal standard (payIn)

PayPal serves as a middleman between your bank and merchants. It keeps your payment information secure, while you easily receive payment in your account. And PayPal standard is an API that provides payment buttons as a quick and easy solution for accepting payments, when integrated into your system.

Click the edit button beside the PayPal standard payIn method to configure it. The **PayPal standard settings** form appears.

PayPal standard Settings	×
Merchant email*	
Activate live payment mode	
Developer guides - click to learn more about the API.	

Follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- PayPal Standard Keys Setup Guide] to configure your email address which will be added here:

• Merchant email*: Enter the merchant email.

This is the email on which the payments will be received. This can be your own email address or the email address of the company, for which a PayPal Business account has been created.



• Activate live payment mode: Check mark this to activate the live payment environment (mode) based on the settings you added to your merchant account.

Deselect it if you want to use the sandbox environment. To explain better:

• **Sandbox:** Sandbox environment is a testing environment. This environment allows users (mostly developers) to imitate the characteristics of a production environment while testing the application.

Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it when you are just testing to see how the plugin works. Changes made with this environment and key will not affect the platform.

• **Production:** Also known as the Live API code, this environment makes the plugin go live. In this case, if any changes are made on the platform using this plugin, it will be a permanent change.

For example, if you are using a live code for a payment method plugin, when you place an order, the payment will be deducted from your account.



Click the '**Developer guides**' link below the field. This will direct you to the PayPal developer's help section allowing you to learn more about it.

Click Save changes.

The details will be updated and the form will close automatically.

d. Authorize.Net (payIn)

Authorize.Net helps make it simple to accept electronic and credit card payments in person, online or over the phone.

Click the edit button beside the Authorize.net payIn method and the **Authorize.Net settings** form appears.



Authorize.Net Settings	×
Login ID*	
Transaction key*	
MD5 hash*	
Activate live payment mode	
Developer guides - click this to learn more about the API	
Authorize.Net helps accept payments anytime, anywhere accept credit	
cards, contactless payments, and eChecks in person and on the go.	

Follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- Authorize.Net Keys Setup Guide] to generate the configuration keys.

Enter the generated keys in this form:

- Login ID*: Enter your login ID that was used for your Authorized.net account.
- Transaction key*: Enter the transaction key.
- **MD5 hash*:** Enter the MD5 hash generated.
- Activate live payment mode: Check mark this to activate the live payment environment (mode) based on the keys you obtained.



Deselect it if you want to use the sandbox environment.

To explain better:

 Sandbox: Sandbox environment is a testing environment. Obtaining the keys of a sandbox environment and integrating it in the system, allows users (mostly developers) to imitate the characteristics of a production environment while testing the application.

Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it when you are just testing to see how the plugin works. Changes made with this environment and key will not affect the platform.

• **Production:** Also known as the Live API code, obtain the product keys and integrate them into the system to make the plugin go live.

In this case, if any changes are made on the platform using this plugin, it will be a permanent change.

For example, if you are using a live code for a payment method plugin, when you place an order, the payment will be deducted from your account.

Ensure that the keys match the environment, else it won't work and can create errors.



Click the 'Developer guides' link below the field. This will direct you to the Authorize.net developer's help section allowing you to learn more about it.

Click Save changes.

The details will be updated and the form will close automatically.

e. PayGate (payIn)

PayGate offers businesses all over the globe with a wide range of payment services and credit card processing services.

Click the edit button beside the PayGate payIn method and the **PayGate settings** form appears.



PayGate Settings	×
PayGate ID*	
Encryption key*	
Developer guides – click this to learn more about the API. Paygate offers your business a fully supported payment gateway that is secure, scalable and efficient to help your business grow in a competitiv digital economy. PayGate is continually adding new services to the list of	ve

Follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- PayGate Keys Setup Guide] to generate the configuration keys and details.

Enter the generated keys in this form:

- **PayGate ID*:** Enter the PayGate ID generated.
- Encryption key*: Enter the encryption key generated.



Click the '**Developer guides**' link below the field. This will direct you to PayGate developer's help section allowing you to learn more about it.

Click **Save changes**. The details will be updated and the form will close automatically.

f. Paystack (payIn)

Paystack Payments Limited offers an online payment platform and a Point-of-Sale (PoS) terminal deployment and support service that allows users to make seamless, stress-free payments for desired goods and services online.



Click the edit button beside the Paystack payIn method and the **Paystack** settings form appears.

Paystack Settings	×
Secret key*	
Public key*	
Developer guides – click to learn more about th	e
API.	
Paystack is the payment processor of choice for some of the fastest- growing businesses in Nigeria. Here're 12 reasons why: -Start accepting payments instantly	

Follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- Paystack Keys Setup Guide] to generate the configuration keys and details.

Enter the generated keys in this form:

- Secret key*: Enter the secret key generated.
- **Public key*:** Enter the public key generated.



Click the '**Developer guides**' link below the field. This will direct you to Paystack developer's help section allowing you to learn more about it.

Click **Save changes**. The details will be updated and the form will close automatically.



g. PayPal payout

PayPal offers everything from basic payouts to enterprise-level solutions. PayPal payouts enable you to send up to thousands of payments at a time by using a CSV file.

Click the edit button beside the PayPal payout method and the **PayPal payout** settings form appears.

PayPal payout Settings	×
Client ID*	
Client secret*	
Activate live payment mode	
Developer guides - click this to learn more about the API.	
Need to pay multiple recipients? PayPal offers everything from basic	
payouts to enterprise-level solutions.	

Follow the steps shared on - [Yo!Gigs- PayPal Payout Keys Setup Guide] to generate the configuration keys and details.

Enter the keys generated in this form:

- Client ID*: Enter the client ID generated.
- **Client secret*:** Enter the client secret generated.



Click the 'Developer guides' link below the field. This will direct you to the PayPal payout developer's help section allowing you to learn more about it.



Click **Save changes**. The details will be updated and the form will close automatically.

h. Stripe Connect (split payment)

This plugin helps split payments and send them to the respective user's stripe accounts automatically and instantly as well.

Click the edit button and the Stripe Connect settings form appears.

Stripe Connect Settings	×
Client ID*	
Secret key*	
Publishable key*	
Use Payment Links to collect payments from customers and automatic pay out a portion to your service providers or clients.	ally
Save changes	

Enter the generated keys in this form:

- **Client ID*:** Enter the client ID
- Secret key*: Enter the secret key.



• Publishable key*: Enter the publishable key.

Click Save changes.

The details will be updated and the form will close automatically.

Update the transaction fee

Next, update the transaction fee for the applicable payout options - **Bank payout** and **PayPal payout**.

Click the **transaction fee button** S beside the respective payment method to configure it.

Payment gateway transaction fee setup	×
Fee type*	
Flat value	~
Transaction fee*	
Save changes	

The **Payment gateway transaction fee setup** form appears. For both the payment methods, the transaction fee form is the same.

Update the following:

• Fee type*: Select the type of fee that will be charged on the amount being withdrawn via the respective payout method.

Click the field and a dropdown list will appear with the following options:

• Flat value

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



- Percentage
- Transaction fee*: Enter the transaction fee based on the fee type selected.

For instance, if you select percentage as the fee type and add 10 in this field, it implies that the fee will be 10% of the total amount.

And if you select flat as the fee type and add 10 in this field (and the default currency is USD), it implies that the fee is \$10. So, for every withdrawal request, a flat fee of \$10 will be applicable in this case.

Click Save changes.

The details will be updated and the form will close automatically.



This transaction fee amount is paid to you by the user. You can charge how much ever you want. However, you are liable to settle any Bank fees or PayPal fee that will be deducted from the user's end.

With this, your payment methods are configured.

Move to the next step.



13. Cancellation rules

The next step involves setting up the cancellation rules.

The submodule allows you to define the refund percentage for both clients and freelancers when a cancellation occurs.

To set the cancellation rules, go to **Settings** > **Cancellation rules**.

Cancellation rules					} 🖉	•		
A Default ca	ancellation rules cannot be o	deleted.					×	
A Create as	Create as many rules as you want on the platform.							
Home / Ca	Home / Cancellation rules Note: Refund will be 100% for missing time durations.					ns. 🕒 Add		
Search							Q	
Sr. no	Туре	Min duration [hrs]	Max duration [hrs]	Client refund [%]	Freelancer refund [%]	Status	Action	
1	Jobs	0	Infinity	100.00	0.00	Active	i	
2	Services	0	Infinity	100.00	0.00	Active	i	
3	Direct booking	0	Infinity	100.00	0.00	Active	i	

The Min duration will be 0, max duration will be infinity and Client refund will be set to 100% for each type if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by setting up your own cancellation rules for **Jobs**, **Services**, and **Direct Booking**.

To do this, click Add from the upper-right corner of the page to open the Cancellation rule setup form.

Cancellation rules setup	×
Туре*	
Jobs	~

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.

i



Enter the following:

• **Type*:** Select the type for which you want to set cancellation rules.

To do this, click the field and a dropdown list of all the types on the platform will appear.

- Jobs: Select this option to set cancellation rules for jobs listed on the platform.
- Services: Select this option to set cancellation rules for services listed on the platform.
- **Direct booking:** Select this option to set cancellation rules for client bookings made through direct booking.

Scroll down to update the rest of the fields under this form:

Min duration*	
0	
Max duration*	
Client refund [%]*	
Freelancer refund [%]*	
Charles and	
Status*	
Active	
Active	~
Save changes	

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Enter the following:

• **Type*:** Select the type for which you want to set cancellation rules.

To do this, click the field and a dropdown list of all the types on the platform will appear.

- Jobs: Select this option to set cancellation rules for jobs listed on the platform.
- Services: Select this option to set cancellation rules for services listed on the platform.
- **Direct booking:** Select this option to set cancellation rules for client bookings made through direct booking.
- **Min duration*:** Enter the minimum duration (in hours) for which the rule will be applicable.
- Max duration*: Enter the maximum duration (in hours) up to when the rule will remain in effect.



While setting the min and max duration, note that a 100% refund will apply if the time duration is exceeded.

- **Client refund [%]*:** Define the percentage of the amount that will be refunded to the client upon cancellation.
- Freelancer refund [%]*: Define the percentage of the amount that will be refunded to the freelancer in case of a cancellation.
- **Status*:** Select the status of the cancellation rule.

To do this, click the field and select "**active**" to mark the cancellation rule as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "**inactive**" to hide the cancellation rule for the time being, on the platform. With this, the rule added will not apply to clients or freelancers during cancellations.

Once done, click Save changes.



The default column updates automatically, setting its min value to the max value of the recently added type, while its max value remains infinity.

Multiple rules can be set, but the default column's max value will always be infinity. The default column fields for each type cannot be edited, except for the Freelancer refund and Client refund fields.



Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the cancellation rule will be added to the list.

Following the same steps, add as many rules to the list that you want on the platform.

Use the **edit button** beside a cancellation rule to edit its information and the **delete button** beside it to delete the rule from the system.

Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.


14. Discount coupons

The next step involves setting up the discount coupons.

This page allows you to create and manage discount coupons that clients can use when purchasing services on the platform.

The platform processes discounts in real time during purchase, updating the final payable amount accordingly.



The cost of all the discount coupons created on the platform is borne by you (the admin).

To create discount coupons, go to Settings > Discount coupons.

	t coupons d manage disc		s that clients c	an use when purch	nasing services on the	₩ 4	2	
A The cost	of all the discou	int coupons creat	ed on the platforn	n is borne by you (the a	dmin).			×
A Create a	s many discount	coupons as you v	want on the platfo	rm.				
Home / Disc	count coupor	าร			Auto transfer (Si	tripe Connect	t)	① Add
Search								Q
Sr. no	Title	Туре	Code	Discount	Available	Status	Ad	ction
No records	found							



The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by adding a coupon on the platform.

To do this, click Add from the upper-right corner of the page to open the Coupon setup form.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Coupo	n setup		×
General	English	Arabic	
Coupon ide	entifier*		
Coupon co	de*		
Discount ty Flat valu			~
Discount v	alue*		

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

General tab

Update the following:

• **Coupon identifier*:** Enter the coupon identifier.

It can be the same as the coupon name or title, which will be defined under the language data tab.





An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other section identifier, else an error message will appear.

- **Coupon code*:** Enter the code that clients will use to avail of the discount.
- **Discount type*:** Select the discount type.
- To do this, click the field and a dropdown list will appear.
 - Flat value
 - Percentage
- **Discount value*:** Enter the discount amount based on the selected discount type.

Scroll down to update the next fields under this forms:

Min order*	
Uses per coupon*	
Uses/client*	
Start date*	
YYYY-MM-DD	白
End date*	
YYYY-MM-DD	Ë

• Min order*: Enter the minimum order amount required for the coupon to be applicable.



- Uses per coupon*: Enter how many times the coupon can be used in total across all clients.
- Uses/client*: Enter how many times an individual can use the coupon.
- **Start date*:** Enter the date from which the coupon will be valid.
- End date*: Enter the expiry date for the coupon.

Scroll down to update the rest of the fields under this form:

Status*	
Select	~
Save changes	

• **Status*:** Select the status of the discount coupon.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the discount coupon as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "inactive" to hide the discount coupon for the time being, on the platform. With this, clients won't be able to use that discount coupon.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the discount coupon to be published.

Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.



Coupon setup	×
General English Arabic	
Coupon title*	
Description	
Auto-translate to other languages	
Save changes	

Update the following:

• **Coupon title*:** Enter the title for the coupon in the default language.

This title will be displayed wherever applicable on the platform.

- **Description:** Enter a description of the discount coupon. This is not displayed on the platform and is just for you.
- Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations** > <u>Third-party APIs</u> has been configured.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.



The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the discount coupon will be added to the list.

Following the same steps, add as many coupons to the list that you want on the platform.

Use the edit button 🖍 beside a coupon to edit its information and the delete

button $\overline{\Box}$ beside it to delete the coupon from the system.



Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



15. Create categories & subcategories

The next step involves setting up categories and subcategories to define the type of services freelancers can offer and the type of jobs clients can post on the platform.

To do this, go to User preferences > Categories.

Categories Manage all the categories of	the platform.			굡	\bigotimes		
Click the number under the sub	ocategories columr	n to view the subcategories list	ed under the respective category.				×
You cannot delete a category; y	ou can only deact	ivate or edit it.					
Home / Categories							ep Padc
Search							Q
Sr. no	Name	Subcategories	Display order	St	tatus	Acti	ion
No records found							

i The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Add all the categories and subcategories you want on the platform under this page.

To do this, click Add from the upper-right corner of the page to open the Category setup form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in. Followed by the secondary language tabs is the media tab.

Let us begin with the General tab.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Catego	ry setup			×
General	English	Arabic	Media	
Identifier *				
Parent cate	egory			
Parent c	ategory			~
Status				
Active				~
Display orc	der			
Save ch	anges			

General tab

Update the following:

• Identifier*: Enter the category/subcategory identifier.

It can be the same as the category/subcategory name, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.



Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other category/subcategory identifier, else an error message will appear.

• **Parent category:** Select the category type. To do this, click the field and a dropdown list will appear.

Select "**root category**" from the list if the category is a parent category or main category. If the category is a subcategory (child category), select the category it will fall under.

• **Status:** Select the status of the category/subcategory.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the category/subcategory as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "inactive" to hide the category/subcategory for the time being, on the platform. With this, freelancers and clients won't be able to select this category/subcategory when updating their profile and posting a job, respectively.

• **Display order:** Enter the order in which this category/subcategory will appear on the platform.

For instance, if you want it to appear first, enter 1.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the category/subcategory to be published.

Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.



General	English	Arabic	Media	
Category na	ame*			
Description				
				li
Auto-	translate to o	ther languag	ges	
Save cha	anges			

Update the following:

• **Category name*:** Enter the name of the category/subcategory in the default language.

This name will be displayed wherever applicable on the platform.

- **Description:** Enter a description of the category/subcategory. This is not displayed on the platform and is just for you.
- Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings > System configurations > Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.



Once done, click Save changes.



The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form or move to the **Media tab**.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form or move to the **Media tab**.

Media tab

The last tab, after the secondary language tab(s), is the media tab.

Click this tab to visit it.

When this tab opens, the name of the form also changes to **Category's media** setup.

Category's media setup					
General	English	Arabic	Media		
	e file No file c mensions 355 ×				

To upload or edit the selected image, click Choose file.

Select a picture from your system and click Open.

The image you upload will be listed below the field.



Upload	
Choose file No file chosen	
Preferred dimensions 355 × 117	
	×

To delete the image, click 🕙 located at the upper-right corner inside the image's section that is located below the field.



When you upload the image, it gets saved automatically in the system. Hence, there is no **Save changes** button under this tab.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the category/subcategory will be added to the list.



The image you upload here will also be displayed on the **homepage** under the **Category collections** if you have activated it. You can manage which categories appear in this collection under the **CMS** > **Home page collections**.

Following the same steps, add as many categories and subcategories to the list that you want on the platform.



Linking skills to the third-level category is mandatory for it to be visible at the frontend when selecting a category.

Ensure you add the only those categories you want since you can only edit a category/subcategory you add. You cannot delete any category from the list.

To edit the category or subcategory created, click the **edit button** *beside* it, and update the details accordingly.



Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



16. Create skills

i

The next step involves setting up the skills.

Freelancers need to select their skills when creating their profile on the platform. And clients need to select the skills they are looking for when creating a job post.

To create skills, go to User preferences > Skills.

Skills Manage all the ski	lls that freelancers can offer on	the platform.		쯥	\bigtriangleup	\bigoplus	
You will need to ap	oprove the skills request under Reques	ts > Skill requests to add the requested skill by a u	ıser, under this list.				×
A This list includes a	all the skills that have been added by yo	ou and other users.					
Home / Skills						(€ Add
Search							Q
Sr. no	Skill name	Added by	Status		Action		
No records found	d						

The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by adding all the skills you want on the platform via this submodule.

To do this, click Add from the upper-right corner of the page to open the Skill setup form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.



Skill set	up		×
General	English	Arabic	
Identifier*			
Status Active			~
Save cha	inges		

General tab

Update the following:

• Identifier*: Enter the skill identifier.

It can be the same as the skill name, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other skill identifier, else an error message will appear.

• Status: Select the status of the skill.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the skill as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "inactive" to hide the skill for the time being, on the platform. With this, freelancers and clients won't be able to select this skill when updating their profile and posting a job, respectively.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the skill to be published.

Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.

General English Arabic
Skill name*
Auto-translate to other languages
Save changes

Update the following:

• Skill name*: Enter the name of the skill in the default language.

This name will be displayed wherever applicable on the platform.

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations > Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.



Once done, click Save changes.



The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the skill will be added to the list.

Following the same steps, add as many skills to the list that you want on the platform.

Use the **edit button** beside a skill to edit its information and the **delete**

button **D** beside it to delete the skill from the system.

Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



17. Create soft skills

Next, set up the soft skills.

Freelancers need to select their soft skills when creating their profile on the platform. And clients need to select the soft skills they are looking for when creating a job post.

To create soft skills, go to User preferences > Soft skills.

Soft skills Manage all the sof	t skills that freelancers can offer o	n the platform.		쯥	\Diamond	\bigoplus	
A You will need to ap	pprove the skills request under Requests > :	Soft skill requests to add the requested skill by a us	er, under this list.				×
A This list includes a	II the soft skills that have been added by yo	ou and other users.					
Home / Soft skills	5					(Ð Add
Search							Q
Sr. no	Soft skill name	Added by	Status		Actio	n	
No records found	d						

The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by adding all the soft skills you want on the platform via this submodule.

To do this, click **Add** from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Soft skill setup** form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.

i



Soft skill setup			
General	English	Arabic	
Identifier*			
Status			
Active			~
Save ch	anges		

General tab

Update the following:

• Identifier*: Enter the soft skill identifier.

It can be the same as the soft skill name, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other soft skill identifier, else an error message will appear.

• Status: Select the status of the soft skill.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the soft skill as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "**inactive**" to hide the soft skill for the time being, on the platform. With this, freelancers and clients won't be able to select this soft skill when updating their profile and posting a job, respectively.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the soft skill to be published.

Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.

General English Arabic	
Soft skill name*	
Auto-translate to other languages	
Save changes	

Update the following:

• Skill name*: Enter the name of the soft skill in the default language.

This name will be displayed wherever applicable on the platform.

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations** > **Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.



Once done, click Save changes.



The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the soft skill will be added to the list.

Following the same steps, add as many soft skills to the list that you want on the platform.

Use the edit button 🖉 beside a soft skill to edit its information and the delete

button **D** beside it to delete the soft skill from the system.

Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



18. Create spoken languages

The next step involves setting up the spoken languages.

Freelancers need to select their spoken language when creating their profile on the platform. And clients need to select the spoken language(s) of the respective freelancer who will be doing the job, when creating a job post.

To create soft skills, go to User preferences > Spoken languages.

.	n languages of freelancers. The fr part of the account setup setting		₩ 🖉	
Before deactivating a spoken lar language, their profile will be hid	nguage, check that no freelancer has seled den from the freelancer's listing page.	cted it as their only spoken language. If the	y did and you deact	ive the X
A No spoken languages can be de	eleted.			
Home / Spoken languages				(⊕ Adc
Search				Q
Sr. no	Language identifier	Language name	Status	Action
No records found				



The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by adding all the spoken languages you want on the platform via this submodule.

To do this, click **Add** from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Spoken language setup** form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform.

An asterisk (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Let us begin with the General tab.

Spoken	languag	esetup	×
General	English	Arabic	
Language ic	dentifier*		
Status			
Active			~
Save cha	anges		

General tab

Update the following:

• Language identifier*: Enter the spoken language identifier.

It can be the same as the spoken language name, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other spoken language identifier, else an error message will appear.

• Status: Select the status of the spoken language.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the spoken language as active and publish it on the platform.



Select "**inactive**" to hide the spoken language for the time being, on the platform. With this, freelancers and clients won't be able to select this spoken language when updating their profile and posting a job, respectively.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the spoken language to be published.

Since English is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.

General English Arabic
Language name*
Auto-translate to other languages
Save changes

Update the following:

• Language name*: Enter the name of the spoken language in the default language.

This name will be displayed wherever applicable on the platform.

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.





This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations > Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.



The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the spoken language will be added to the list.

Following the same steps, add as many spoken languages to the list that you want on the platform.

Use the edit button 🖉 beside a spoken language to edit its information and the

delete button $\overline{\mathbf{D}}$ beside it to delete the spoken language from the system.

Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



19. Create cities

The next step involves setting up the spoken languages.

Freelancers need to select their city for their address, when creating their profile on the platform. And clients need to select the city when adding an address for an on-site job post.

To create soft skills, go to User preferences > Cities.

Cities Manage the	e list of all the citie	s on the platform.		쯥	\Diamond	
🛕 You cann	ot delete a city from th			×		
A To remov	e a city from the servic	eable list, deactivate that city's en	try.			
Home / Ci	ties					+ Add
Search						Q
Sr. no	Country	State	City	Sta	tus	Action
1	Romania	llfov County	1 Decembrie		•	i
2	Mexico	Guerrero	10 de Abril		•	ľ



The list will come prefilled with a list of all the main cities in the world. You can add or edit the cities as per your requirements.

If some cities are missing from the list, use the add feature to add them.

Click Add from the upper-right corner of the page to open the City setup form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



	up		×
General	English	Arabic	
Identifier*			
Country*			
Select			~
State*			
Select			~
Status			
Active			~

General tab

Update the following:

• Identifier*: Enter the city identifier.

It can be the same as the city name, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.



Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other city identifier, else an error message will appear.

• **Country*:** Select the country under which this city falls.

To do this, click the field and dropdown list appears with all the active countries on the platform.



Manage all the list of countries under User preferences > Countries.

• **State*:** Select the state under which this city falls.

To do this, click the field and dropdown list appears with all the active states of active countries on the platform.



Manage all the list of states under **User preferences > States**.

• Status: Select the status of the city.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the city as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "**inactive**" to hide the city for the time being, on the platform. With this, freelancers and clients won't be able to select this city when adding their address.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the city to be published.

Since English is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.



General English Arabic
City name*
Auto-translate to other languages
Save changes

Update the following:

• **City name*:** Enter the name of the city in the default language.

This name will be displayed wherever applicable on the platform.

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations** > **Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.

The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform.

An asterisk (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the city will be added to the list.

To edit a city, click the edit button *b*eside it, and update the details accordingly.



Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



20. Set up the Freelancer registration dynamic tabs, sections & fields.

The next step involves setting up the dynamic tabs, sections, and fields of the freelancer registration form.

When a user decides to join the platform as a freelancer, they are required to first register as a user on the platform via the Sign up page.

Once they do this, they are directed to the freelancer registration form.

By default, the system has two tabs under the freelancer registration form that allows you to collect the basic details of the freelancer including their address, profile picture, a short bio, their skills and preferences.

Yo!Gigs			X Cano
	Gener	al profile	
Personal information	Personal information		Auto-translate into other languages
2 Skills & preferences	First name *	Last name	English 🗸
	Gender *	Timezone *	Personal information Full name, email, phone
	Select 🗸	UTC +05:30 Asia/Kolkata 🗸	number, timezone, profile picture, a short
	Phone code *	Phone number *	description, etc.
	India (91) 🗸		
	.		
	Next: Add sk	ills & preferences	

However, you can choose to collect more information from the freelancer including document proofs, education background, work experience, CV, etc.

This can be done via the **Freelancer** module, which allows you to set up the dynamic tabs, sections and fields of the form to collect additional information from the freelancer.



	Add	skills & preferences	Tabs
Personal information	Set up your profile		
2 Skills & preferences	Profile category *	Hourly price (USD) *	→ Section
	Website & CMS Bug Fixes	Hourly price	
	Profile title *	Expert	
	Description		
	Add a cover letter justifying your sele	cted profile and skills	Fields
			Add
	Back	Next: Submit	

To do this, follow the steps below:

Step 1: Create the dynamic tabs.

To do this, go to Freelancer > Registration form's dynamic tabs.

Registration form's dynamic tabs Create and manage all the dynamic tabs of the freelancer's registration form.	쯥	Ŵ	\oplus				
▲ Ensure that the tab is linked to the right sections and fields accordingly.				×			
Each tab can have sections and fields under the respective sections.							
Home / Registration form's dynamic tabs							
Search				Q			
Sr. no Name Display order Status		Action					
No records found							

The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.

i



Begin by adding the tabs you want in the freelancer registration form.

To do this, click Add from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Freelancer registration form's tab setup** form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

Freelancer registration form's tab setup			
General	English	Arabic	
Identifier*			
Status			
Active			~
Display ord	ler		
Save ch	anges		

General tab

Update the following:



• Identifier*: Enter the tab identifier.

It can be the same as the tab name or title, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other tab identifier, else an error message will appear.

• **Status:** Select the status of the tab.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the tab as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "inactive" to hide the tab for the time being, on the platform. When you deactivate a tab, all the sections and fields under the respective tab will be hidden (deactivated) from the platform too.

• **Display order:** Enter the order in which this tab will appear under the freelancer registration form (after the default tabs of the form).

For instance, if you want it to appear first, enter 1.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab.

Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.



General	English	Arabic		
Tab title*				
Description*				
	<u>u s a</u> j		œ ₽ ∕	 A A A
A* • 🧷				html

Update the following:

• Tab title*: Enter the title of the tab in the default language.

This name will be displayed on the form.

• **Description*:** Edit/enter the description of the tab, and format it according to your taste using the content editor.

This content is displayed on the right side of the page under the tab name.

Add sk	ills & preferences	
Set up your profile		Auto-translate into other languages
Profile category *	Hourly price (USD) *	English
Website & CMS Bug Fixes	Hourly price	
Profile title *		 Skills & preferences Profile title, skills, soft
Eg. Web Designer & UI/UX Designin	g Expert	skills, etc.
Description		
Add a cover letter justifying your se	lected profile and skills	
Back		

Scroll down to update the last setting:



<body></body>		•
Auto-translat	e to other languages	
Save changes		

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations > Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.

The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the tab will be added under the freelancer registration form's dynamic tabs list.

Following the same steps, add as many tabs to the list that you want on the platform.



Ensure you add the only those tabs you want since you can only edit a tab you add. You

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



cannot delete any tab from the list.

To edit a tab, click the edit button *b* beside it, and update the details accordingly.



Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.

Step 2: Create the dynamic sections.

To do this, go to Freelancer > Registration form's dynamic sections.

Registration form's dynamic sections Create and manage all the dynamic sections of the freelancer's registration form.					\Diamond	\bigoplus		
A Ensure that th	Ensure that the section is linked to the right tab and fields accordingly.							×
A Each section	Each section will fall under a tab, and can have fields under it.							
Home / Regist	Home / Registration form's dynamic sections					€ Add		
Search								Q
Sr. no	Name	Tab name	Display order	Status		Ac	tion	
No records fo	No records found							

i

The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by adding the sections you want in the freelancer registration form.

To do this, click Add from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Freelancer registration form's section setup** form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.


Freelar	ncer regis	tration form's section setup	×
General	English	Arabic	
Identifier*			
Tab			
Qualifica	ations		~
Status			
Active			~
Display ord	ler		
Save ch	anges		

General tab

Update the following:

• Identifier*: Enter the section identifier.

It can be the same as the section name or title, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.



Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other section identifier, else an error message will appear.

• Tab: Select the tab under which this section will fall.

To do this, click the field and a dropdown list of all the active tabs on the platform will appear.



Manage the list of dynamic tabs under **Freelancer > Registration form's dynamic** tabs.

• **Status:** Select the status of the section.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the section as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "**inactive**" to hide the section for the time being, on the platform. When you deactivate a section, all the fields under it will be hidden (deactivated) from the platform too.

• **Display order:** Enter the order in which this section will appear under the selected tab of the freelancer registration form.

For instance, if you want it to appear first, enter 1.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab.

Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.



General	English	Arabic		
Section title*				
Auto-tra	nslate to otl	her language	es	
Save change	es			

Update the following:

• Section title*: Enter the title of the section in the default language.

This name will be displayed on the form.

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations** > **Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.

The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.



With this, the section will be added under the freelancer registration form's dynamic sections list.

Following the same steps, add as many sections (for all the dynamic tabs created) to the list that you want on the platform.



Ensure you add only those sections you want since you can only edit a section you add. You cannot delete any section from the list.

To edit a section, click the edit button *beside* it, and update the details accordingly.



i

Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.

Step 3: Create the dynamic fields.

To do this, go to Freelancer > Registration form's dynamic fields.

	on form's dyn nanage all the dy		eelancer's registration form.		쯥	\bigotimes	\bigoplus	
A Ensure that	Ensure that the field is linked to the right section and tab accordingly.							×
A Each field w	ill fall under a sectio	n, which falls under a tab.						
Home / Regi	stration form's o	dynamic fields					G) Add
Search								Q
Sr. no No records	Name	Tab name	Section name	Display order	Status		Action	

The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by adding the fields you want in the freelancer registration form.

Click Add from the upper-right corner of the page to open the Freelancer registration form's field setup form.



Freelar	ncer regis	stration form's field setup	×
General	English	Arabic	
Tab			
Qualifica	ations		~
Section*			
Select			~
Identifier*			
Field type*			
Input fie	eld		~
Mark	it as a requir	ed (mandatory) field.	

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

General tab

Update the following:

• **Tab:** Select the tab under which this field will fall.



To do this, click the field and a dropdown list of all the active tabs on the platform will appear.



Manage the list of dynamic tabs under **Freelancer > Registration form's dynamic** tabs.

• Section*: Select the section under which this field will fall.

To do this, click the field and a dropdown list of all the active sections for the selected tab in the previous field will appear.



Manage the list of dynamic tabs under **Freelancer > Registration form's dynamic** sections.

• Identifier*: Enter the field identifier.

It can be the same as the field name or title, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other field identifier, else an error message will appear.

• Field type: Select the type of field.

To do this, click the field to select the following options from the dropdown list that appears:

- Input field
- Text area field
- Dropdown list field
- Checkbox field
- Radio options field
- Date field
- Upload document field
- Email field

Make your selection based on the information type you are trying to collect via this field.

• Mark it as a required (mandatory) field: Check mark this to make this field a mandatory field.

The user will not be able to save the details and move to the next tab without filling out the mandatory field.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it if you do not want to mark this field as a mandatory field. In this case, freelancers can skip this field.

Scroll down to update the rest of the fields under this form:

Field length*	
Status	
Active	~
Display order	
Save changes	

Additional (and different) fields will appear for each field type selected.

Each situation has been explored:

i. Input field

The following field will appear. Edit it accordingly:

• **Field length:** Enter the characters length of the input field. It will restrict the user from entering more characters than those set.

ii. Text area field; Email field

No additional field will appear for these two field types.



iii. Dropdown list field; Checkbox field, Radio options field

The following fields will appear if you select any of these three options:

Dropdown list field		~
Option value*	Display order	Status
		Active 🗸
Add more values		
Mark it as a required (r	nandatory) field.	
Use this as a filter on t	he front-end listing page	

Use the option value, display order and status fields to create the values (options) that will be displayed in the dropdown list/radio button options/checkbox options.

• **Option value*:** Enter the option name or value.

For instance, if the dropdown list/radio button option/checkbox option is a list of different education levels, and the first option is 'Primary education.'

• **Display order:** Enter the order in which this option will appear under this field type.

For instance, if you want it to appear first, enter 1.

• **Status:** Select the status of the option.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the option as active to display it in this field type on the freelancer form.

Select "**inactive**" to hide the option in this field type on the freelancer form. In this case, this option will not be visible and cannot be selected by any freelancer.



With this, one option value is created.

To add another option value, click **Add more values** and a new set of fields will appear. Add as many reasonable numbers of options as required for the field type following this process.

Option value		Display or	der	Status	
Ph.D		4		Active 🗸	
Option value	Display orde	r Sta	atus		
			Active	~	-
Add more values					

If you clicked the Add more values button by mistake, click 🛡 beside the new fields to remove them.

Once all the options have been added, move to the next field:

• Use this as a filter on the front-end listing page: Check mark this to use the options created for this field as a filter for the freelancer listing page at the front end.

Clients will be able to narrow down their search by using these filters and get exactly what they are looking for.

Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it if you do not want to use this as a field for the freelancer listing page.



There is a limit that can be set for the number of dynamic filters you can create using this feature. Manage this setting under **Settings > System configurations > Common settings tab**.

If the number of dynamic filters limit reaches, this field will still be visible; however, an error will appear when you select it.



iv. Date field

The following fields will appear. Edit them accordingly:

Field type*	
Date field	~
Mark it as a required (mandatory) field.	
Allow to select a past date	
Allow to select a future date	

• Allow to select a past date: Check mark this to allow the freelancer to select a date that falls before the current date (an older date).

Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it if you do not want to allow the freelancer to select an old date.

• Allow to select a future date: Check mark this to allow the freelancer to select a date that falls after the current date (a future date).

Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it if you do not want to allow the freelancer to select a future date.

v. Upload document field

The following fields will appear. Edit them accordingly:



Mark it as a required (mandatory) field.
Select format
png
jpeg
jpg
gif
pdf
doc
docx
txt
csv
File size in MB*
0

• Select format: Check mark the document formats you can accept from the user. The user will only be able to upload documents that are of the selected format.

Leave those checkboxes unselected or deselect those formats that you do not accept for the document.



If you do not select even one format, users won't be able to upload any document. So, kindly ensure you select at least one format from the list.

• File size in MB*: Enter the maximum size the document can be of, in megabytes.

For instance, if the maximum file size you want is 2 MB, enter 2 in this field. And the freelancers won't be able to upload any file whose size is larger than 2 MB.



Once you have updated the field type and its related field details, move to on to fill the last fields of the form:

Status	
Active	~
Display order	
Save changes	

• **Status:** Select the status of the field.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the field as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "inactive" to hide the field for the time being, on the platform. When you deactivate a section, all the fields under it will be hidden (deactivated) from the platform too.

• **Display order:** Enter the order in which this field will appear under the selected section of the freelancer registration form.

For instance, if you want it to appear first, enter 1.

Once done, click **Save changes**. This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab. Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.



General English Arabic
Field title*
Auto-translate to other languages
Save changes

Update the following:

- Field title*: Enter the title of the field in the default language. This name will be displayed on the form.
- Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings > System configurations > Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.



The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.



With this, the field will be added under the freelancer registration form's dynamic fields list.

Following the same steps, add as many fields (for all the dynamic sections created) to the list that you want on the platform.



Ensure you add only those fields you want since you can only edit a field you add. You cannot delete any field from the list.

To edit a field, click the edit button *b*eside it, and update the details accordingly.



Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



21. Add freelancers from your end

Once you have set up the freelancer form, you can also add freelancer profiles on the platform from the admin dashboard.

To do this, go to Users > Add freelancers.

Add freelancers Manage and add freelancers on the platform from your end (admin-added freelancers) via this submodule.	굡	\bigotimes	
▲ The freelancers you add here will also be visible under the platform users list.			×
This includes only the freelancers you add.			
Home / Add freelancers			🕀 Add
Search			Q
Sr. no Image Name & user ID Email & phone no. Type Registered on		Verified	Action
No records			



The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Create freelancer profiles and share the credentials with the respective users to access their account then.

To do this, click **Add** from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Add freelancer** form.

Add freelancer form Add a freelancer's profile from your end by filling out the details in the form below.				\oplus	
A This form is the same as the form that is visible to the freelance	r.				
Home / Add freelancers / Add Freelancer Form					Back
Auto-translate into other languages	Profile				
English	First name*				
Registration details	Last name				
Personal information					
Skills & preferences	Username*				

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



Fill out the details in all the fields of all the tabs under this form to create the freelancer profile.

This form has the same tabs, sections and fields as in the freelancer registration form (the form filled by freelancers from the front end to join as a freelancer on the platform).

All the tabs, sections and fields you created in the previous steps will be visible in this form (*just as it would in the freelancer registration form* at the front end).

Refer to <u>Step 3</u> under <u>Yo!Gigs v3.2 - Freelancer Getting Started Guide</u> to know more about what needs to be filled under this form.

Follow the same process and add as many freelancer profiles from your end under this submodule.



Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



22. Sponsored freelancer

The next step involves setting up the Sponsored plans.



i

This module is visible only when the sponsored freelancer module is activated under Settings > System configurations > Common settings tab > <u>Sponsored freelancer settings</u>.

The **Sponsored freelancer module** allows you to manage the sponsored plans that freelancers can purchase to enhance their visibility on the platform.

You can create new plans as per the requirement.

To create a new plan, go to **Sponsored freelancer** > **Sponsored plans.**

Sponsored Create and ma on the platfor	anage spons	ored plans th	at freelancer	s can purchas	e to enhance their visi	bility (∃ &		
A Maximum of	four sponsored	plans can be ad	ded to the platfo	orm.					×
A Set the plan	validity period i	n days and defin	e the correspon	ding price.					
Home / Sponso	pred plans								🕀 Add
Search									Q
Sr. no	Title	Price	Days	Active	Created on	Upc	lated on	A	ction
No records fou	und								

The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by adding a new plan on the platform for the freelancers.

To do this, click Add from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Sponsored plan setup** form.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



Sponso	ored plan	setup		×
General	English	Arabic	Spanish	
Option ider	ntifier*			
Price*				
Plan valid fo	or days*			
Display ord	ler			
Save ch	anges			

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.



General tab

Update the following:

• **Option identifier*:** Enter the sponsored plan identifier.

It can be the same as the plan name or title, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other option identifier, else an error message will appear.

- **Price*:** Enter the price of the sponsored plan.
- **Plan valid for days*:** Enter the number of days the sponsored plan will remain active.
- **Display order:** Enter the order in which the plan appears in the list.

For instance, if you want it to appear first, enter 1.

Once done, click **Save changes**. This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the sponsored plan to be published. Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.

Sponsored plan setup				
General	English	Arabic	Spanish	
Title*				

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



Update the following:

• Title*: Enter the name of the sponsored plan in the default language.

This name will be displayed to freelancers under the Sponsored plans submodule.

* • 🧷			<> html	
)DY> < <u>BR</u> >				

• **Description:** Provide details about the plan, and format it according to your taste using the content editor.

This content is displayed to the freelancers under 'View plans details'.

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations** > <u>Third-party APIs</u> has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.



Once done, click Save changes.



The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking \times in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the sponsored plan will be added to the list.



A maximum of four sponsored plans can be added to the platform by following the same steps.

Use the edit button *beside* a plan to edit its information and the delete

button $\overline{\Box}$ beside it to delete the plan from the system.



Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



23. Ready-to-go service packages

The next step involves setting up the Service packages.



This module is visible only when the Service module is enabled under **Settings > System** configurations > Common settings tab > <u>Service module settings</u>.

The **Service package module** enables you to create ready-to-go services that freelancers can directly add. These service packages are listed in the marketplace and are accessible to all freelancers from their dashboards.

This module consists of five submodules:

23.1 Service types

Next, set up the service type.

The sub-module allows you to define and manage different service types that freelancers can offer on the platform. Multiple service types can be created, providing a structured way to categorize services. These service types act as a foundation for setting up <u>Dynamic fields</u>, which must be configured after the service types are defined.

To create a service type, go to **Ready-to-go service packages** > **Service type**.

Service type Create and man		es that freelancers can offer on the platforr	n. 🗠	\bigotimes		
A Service types of	annot be deleted if they are ass	sociated with any dynamic fields or service plans.				×
A Create as many	v service types as you want on t	he platform.				
Home / Service t	ypes				(€ Add
Search						Q
Sr. no	Service types	Display order	Status		Action	
No records foun	d					





The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by adding a service type you want on the platform.

To do this, click **Add** from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Service type setup** form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

Service	×		
General	English	Arabic	
Identifier*			
Status			
Active			~
Order			
Save ch	anges		



General tab

Update the following:

• Identifier*: Enter the service type identifier.

It can be the same as the service name, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other identifier, else an error message will appear.

• **Status:** Select the status of the service.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the service as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "**inactive**" to hide the service for the time being, on the platform. When you deactivate a service, it will be hidden (deactivated) from the platform too.

• Order: Set the display order in which you want the service type to be listed on the platform.

For instance, if you want it to appear first, enter 1.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the service type to be published.

Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.



Service	type seti	h	×
General	English	Arabic	
Service nam	e*		
Auto-	translate to ot	ther languages	
Save cha	nges		

Update the following:

• Service name*: Enter the name of the service in the default language.

This name will be displayed wherever applicable on the platform.

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations > Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.

i

The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.



You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the service type will be added to the list.

Following the same steps, add as many service types to the list that you want on the platform.

Use the edit button 🖉 beside a service type to edit its information and the

delete button $\overline{\mathbf{D}}$ beside it to delete the service type from the system.

Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.

23.2 Dynamic fields

The next step involves setting up the dynamic fields.

The sub-module allows you to create custom fields under specific service types. These fields help define the information freelancers need to provide when setting up their service packages. Multiple dynamic fields can be created for each service type, and they will be displayed on the platform based on the selected service type.

To create dynamic fields, go to **Ready-to-go service packages** > **Dynamic fields**.



Dynamic fields Create and manage all the d	ynamic fields in the freelancer's s	ervice settings form.	쯥	\bigotimes		
A Ensure that each field is linked	to the correct service type.					×
A Each field will fall under a servio	e type created on the platform.					
Home / Dynamic fields						🕀 Add
Search						Q
Sr. no Field name	Service types	Display order	Stat	tus	Acti	ion
No records found						

Begin by adding the fields you want on the platform.

To do this, click **Add** from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Field setup** form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

Field set	up		×
General	English	Arabic	
Service types	5 [*]		
Select			~



General tab

Update the following:

• Service types*: Select the service type.

To do this, click the field and a dropdown list will appear. This list contains all the service types created earlier.



Manage the list of service types under **Ready-to-go service packages** > <u>Service</u> <u>types</u>.

Select the service type from the list for which you want to create a dynamic field.

Scroll down to update the next fields:

Identifier*	
Field type*	
Input field	~
Mark it as a required (mandatory) field.	

• Identifier*: Enter the dynamic field identifier.

It can be the same as the field title, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other section identifier, else an error message will appear.

• Field type*: Select the type of field.

To do this, click the field to select the following options from the dropdown list that appears:

• Input field

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.



- Text area field
- Dropdown list field
- Checkbox field
- Radio options field
- Date field
- Upload document field
- Email field

Make your selection based on the information type you are trying to collect via this field.

• Mark it as a required (mandatory) field: Check mark this to make this field a mandatory field.

The user will not be able to save the details and move to the next tab without filling out the mandatory field.

Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it if you do not want to mark this field as a mandatory field. In this case, freelancers can skip this field.

Scroll down to update the rest of the fields under this form:

Field length*		
Status		
Active		~
Display order		
Save changes		
Save changes		

Additional (and different) fields will appear for each field type selected.

Each situation has been explored:



i. Input field

The following field will appear. Edit it accordingly:

• **Field length:** Enter the characters length of the input field. It will restrict the user from entering more characters than those set.

ii. Text area field; Email field

No additional field will appear for these two field types.

iii. Dropdown list field; Checkbox field, Radio options field

Option value*	Display order	Status
		Active 🗸
Add more values		
Mark it as a required (mandator	ry) field.	
Use this as a filter on the front-	end listing page	

The following fields will appear if you select any of these three options:

Use the option value, display order and status fields to create the values (options) that will be displayed in the dropdown list/radio button options/checkbox options.

• **Option value*:** Enter the option name or value.

For instance, if the dropdown list, radio button, or checkbox options represent different service durations, the first option could be 'Basic - 5 Days delivery.'

• **Display order:** Enter the order in which this option will appear under this field type.



For instance, if you want it to appear first, enter 1.

• **Status:** Select the status of the option.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the option as active to display it in this field type on the freelancer Service settings form.

Select "inactive" to hide the option in this field type on the freelancer Service settings form. In this case, this option will not be visible and cannot be selected by any freelancer.

With this, one option value is created.

To add another option value, click **Add more values** and a new set of fields will appear. Add as many reasonable numbers of options as required for the field type following this process.

Option value*		Displa	ay order	Status	
Basic - 3 Days Delivery		2		Active	~
Option value	ption value Display order		Status		
			Active	~	e
Add more values					

If you clicked the Add more values button by mistake, click 💭 beside the new fields to remove them.

Once all the options have been added, move to the next field:

• Use this as a filter on the front-end listing page: Check mark this to use the options created for this field as a filter for the freelancer Service settings at the front end.

Clients will be able to narrow down their search by using these filters and get exactly what they are looking for.



Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it if you do not want to use this as a field for the freelancer listing page.



There is a limit that can be set for the number of dynamic filters you can create using this feature. Manage this setting under **Settings > System configurations > Common settings tab**.

If the number of dynamic filters limit reaches, this field will still be visible; however, an error will appear when you select it.

iv. Date field

The following fields will appear. Edit them accordingly:

Field	d type*	
D	Date field	~
	Mark it as a required (mandatory) field.	
	Allow to select a past date	
	Allow to select a future date	

• Allow to select a past date: Check mark this to allow the freelancer to select a date that falls before the current date (an older date).

Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it if you do not want to allow the freelancer to select an old date.

• Allow to select a future date: Check mark this to allow the freelancer to select a date that falls after the current date (a future date).

Leave the checkbox unselected or deselect it if you do not want to allow the freelancer to select a future date.



v. Upload document field

The following fields will appear. Edit them accordingly:

Mark it as a required (mandatory) field.
Select format
png
jpeg
gqi
gif
pdf
doc
docx
txt
csv
File size in MB*
0

• Select format: Check mark the document formats you can accept from the user. The user will only be able to upload documents that are of the selected format.

Leave those checkboxes unselected or deselect those formats that you do not accept for the document.



If you do not select even one format, users won't be able to upload any document. So, kindly ensure you select at least one format from the list.

• File size in MB*: Enter the maximum size the document can be of, in megabytes.



For instance, if the maximum file size you want is 2 MB, enter 2 in this field. And the freelancers won't be able to upload any file whose size is larger than 2 MB.

Once you have updated the field type and its related field details, move to on to fill the last fields of the form:

Status		
Active		~
Display order		
Save changes		

• **Status:** Select the status of the dynamic field.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the dynamic field as active under the selected service type.

Select "**inactive**" to hide the dynamic field. In this case, this field will not be visible under the selected service type to the freelancer.

• **Display order:** Enter the order in which this dynamic field will appear under the selected service type.

For instance, if you want it to appear first, enter 1.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the dynamic fields to be published.

Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.



Field Setup)		×
General En	nglish	Arabic	
Field title*			
Auto-trans	slate to oth	er languages	
Save changes			

Update the following:

• Field title*: Enter the title of the dynamic field in the default language.

This title will be displayed on the Service setting form depending on the Service type selected by the freelancer.

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations > Third-party APIs** has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.

The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform.

An asterisk (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the dynamic field will be added under the service type selected.

Following the same steps, add as many dynamic fields under the created service type you want on the platform.

Use the edit button *beside* a dynamic field to edit its information and the

delete button \Box beside it to delete the dynamic field from the system.

Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.

23.3 Marketplace services

The next step involves setting up the Marketplace services.

The sub-module allows you to create ready-to-go services that freelancers can directly add to their platform. Multiple services can be created under this page, ensuring that freelancers have access to pre-configured service options.

To create Marketplace services, go to **Ready-to-go service packages** > Marketplace servicers.

Marketplace services Create and manage ready-to-go marketplace services that freelancers can directly add to the platform.					\bigotimes	\bigoplus	
A Ensure that each service is linked to the correct service type.							×
Assign any marketplace	e service to freelancers.						
Home / Marketplace services							① Add
Search							Q
Sr. no S	Service	Status	Added on		Act	ion	
No records found							




The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by adding the services you want on the platform.

To do this, click **Add** from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Service setup** form.

There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the other information tab, then the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

Service	setup			×
General	Other information	English	Arabic	
Category				
Service type	s*			
Service pa	ackages			~
Identifier*				
Status				
Active				~
Save char	nges			

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



General tab

Update the following:

• Category: Select the category.

To do this, click the field and a dropdown list will appear. Multiple categories can be selected from the list.



Manage the list of Categories under **User preferences** > <u>Categories</u>.

• **Service types*:** Select the service type for which you want to create the marketplace service for the freelancers.

To do this, click the field and a dropdown list of all the active service types will appear.

Based on the selection the fields under the **<u>Other information tab</u>** will appear.



Manage the list of Service types under **Ready-to-go service packages >** <u>Service</u> <u>types</u>.

• Identifier*: Enter the service identifier.

It can be the same as the service name, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other identifier, else an error message will appear.

• Status: Select the status of the service.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the service as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "inactive" to hide the service for the time being, on the platform.

When you deactivate a service, it will be hidden from the freelancer under marketplace service subsection.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the Other information tab.



Other information tab

The fields under this tab, located below the Skills section, are dynamic and created by you. They may vary based on the selected service type and the fields added.

Service Setup			×			
General Other informatio	on English	Arabic				
Skills*						
+ Azure + Element	or/Divi + HT	TML/CSS + Java	a			
+ JavaScript + My	SQL + PHP	+ WooCommer	се			
What i need from you? Note: This field is not visible in language specific tab until you fill the data What we offer?						
в и Ц 5 А Т	E = 3	∞ ₽ ∕ (\$ / \$	89			
A: • 🔗		► html				
			Ì			
Note: This field is not visible in lang	uage specific tab unti	il you fill the data				

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



• Skills*: All the applicable skills that fall under the selected parent category and subcategory will be listed here. Select the skills required for this service by clicking it.

Freelancers can modify the selected skills based on their preferences when adding this service from the marketplace.



Manage the list of skills under User preferences > <u>Skills</u>.

The remaining fields under this tab are dynamic and created by you (the admin) based on platform requirements, so they may vary from those shown here.

Fill out all the dynamic fields, especially the mandatory ones, to proceed.

i

The fields under the language-specific tabs (English, Arabic) will only become visible once data is entered in the respective fields under the Other information tab. Ensure that you fill out the required details in the other information tab first to enable these fields for translation.

Once done, click Save changes.

*i*You can skip the Other information tab if you do not wish to fill it out at the moment. Simply enter the required details in the General tab, click **Save changes**, and close the form. However, if you skip the Other information tab, you will not be able to proceed with filling out the secondary language data tab(s).

English tab

This is the default language data tab. Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.

Service setup				
General	Other information	English	Arabic	
Service nam	e*			

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



• Service name*: Enter the name of service in the default language.

This name will be displayed to the freelancer on the marketplace service subsection.

Scroll down to update the next fields.

Description				
What i need from you?				
]			
BIUSAT		œ ₽ ∕	A	89
A: • 🧷	* 1 * 2 * 3		<> html	
				Î
				-

• **Description:** Provide details about the service, and format it according to your taste using the content editor.

This content is displayed to the freelancers under 'View service detail'.



The remaining fields under this tab are dynamic and created by you (the admin) based on platform requirements, so they may vary from those shown here.

Fill out all the dynamic fields, especially the mandatory ones, to proceed.

Scroll down to update the rest of the fields under this form:



• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically. With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.



This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations** > <u>Third-party APIs</u> has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.





The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the service will be added under the marketplace services.

Following the same steps, add as many services under the marketplace services you want on the platform.

Use the **edit button** beside a Marketplace services to edit its information and the **an ellipsis button** beside it to access the **delete** and **view button**.



Click delete button $\overline{\Box}$ to delete the service from the system and view button

b to view the related information.

To assign marketplace service to the freelancer, click the assign service to freelancer button \bigcirc , and the Assign freelancer to service form will appear.



Assign free	elancer to service		×
Link			
Sr. no	Name	Action	
No records fou	Ind		

Since you have just added the service but have not linked a freelancer, the records will be empty.

To do this, click the field below Link, and a list of freelancers will appear.

nk	
Francesco	Î
James	
Maria	
Audrey	
Diana	
Mamie	
Alison	÷

Select the freelancer to whom you want to assign the service. Once selected the name of the freelancer will appear in the records.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory. The **secondary language** setting and tabs are **ONLY available** if you have selected more than one language for the platform.

1



Assign fre	elancer to service	×
Link		
Sr. no	Name	Action
1	James Seo	Ō

Following the same steps, assign the service to as many freelancers as you want on the platform.

Use the **delete button** $\overline{\mathbf{D}}$ to remove the freelancer from the assigned service.

Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.

23.4 Service plans

The next step involves setting up the service plans.

The sub-module allows you to define different pricing tiers for service packages. These plans help structure the services into different levels, with varying features and pricing options.

To define plans, go to Ready-to-go service packages > service plans.



Service plans Create and manage differen	t pricing tiers for service pac	skages.	쯥	\bigotimes	\bigoplus	
A Maximum of three service plar	ns can be added to the platform.					×
A Edit or delete the plans as per	your requirements.					
Home / Service plans						🕀 Add
Search						Q
Sr. no	Plans	Status	A	ction		
No records found						

The list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Begin by setting up the plans you want on the platform.

To do this, click **Add** from the upper-right corner of the page to open the **Service plan setup** form.

Service	e plan set	up		×
General	English	Arabic		
Plan identif	ier*			
Status				
Active				~
Save cha	anges			

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk** (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.

The secondary language setting and tabs are ONLY available if you have selected more than one language for the platform.

i



There are multiple tabs under this form.

The very first tab is the General tab, followed by the other information tab, then the default language tab, and then the secondary language tabs. The number of secondary language tabs will depend on the number of languages your platform is available in.

Let us begin with the General tab.

General tab

Update the following:

• Plan identifier: Enter the plan identifier.

It can be the same as the plan name, which will be defined under the language data tab.



An identifier is used to save the data in the system and will not be displayed anywhere on the platform.

Ensure that the identifier is unique and unlike any other plan identifier, else an error message will appear.

• **Status:** Select the status of the service plan.

To do this, click the field and select "active" to mark the service plan as active and publish it on the platform.

Select "**inactive**" to hide the service plan for the time being, on the platform. When you deactivate a service, it will be hidden from the freelancer under Service setting setup form.

Once done, click Save changes.

This will direct you to the next tab, which is the default language data tab (English tab).

English tab

This is the default language data tab and it is mandatory to fill this tab for the service plan to be published.

Since **English** is set as the default language, this tab is called the English tab.



Service	e plan set	ир	×
General	English	Arabic	
Plan name*	¢		
Auto	-translate to	other languages	
Save ch	anges		

• **Plan name*:** Enter the name of the service plan in the default language.

This name will be displayed on the Service setting form under the Plans tab to the freelancer.

• Auto-translate to other languages: Check mark this to update the secondary language(s) data automatically.

With this, the data under the next language tab(s) gets auto-filled.

!

This option is visible only when the **Microsoft translator API** feature under **Settings** > **System configurations** > <u>Third-party APIs</u> has been configured.

Deselect or leave the checkbox unselected if you want to fill the secondary language(s) data on your own.

Once done, click Save changes.

The next tab(s) after this is the secondary language tab(s) (Arabic) and will all have the same fields as the English tab. You can edit the details for it and save.

If you opted to have the default language **auto-translated into** the secondary language(s), the secondary language tab(s) will be prefilled. In this case, review the data in the secondary language tab(s), edit if necessary, click **Save changes**, close the form.

You can also skip the secondary language data tab(s) if you do not want to fill it at the moment. Simply fill in the data of the default language tab (English tab), click **Save changes**, and close the form.

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An **asterisk (*)** next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.



Once done, close the form by clicking X in the upper-right corner of the form.

With this, the Service plan will be added to the list.



A maximum of three service plans can be added to the platform by following the same steps.

Use the edit button 🖉 beside a service plan to edit its information and the

delete button \Box beside it to delete the service plan from the system.

Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.

23.5 Service package requests

The next step involves setting up the service package requests.

The sub-module allows you to review and manage service packages submitted by freelancers. These packages are ready-to-go services that freelancers want to offer on the platform.

To manage the requests, go to Ready-to-go service packages > Service package requests.

Service package Review and manage		kage requests submitted b	y freelancers.	쯥	\Diamond	\bigoplus	
A Once a request has b	peen approved, it canno	t be declined.					×
Approve the service requests you want to publish on the platform.							
Home / Service package requests							
Search							Q
Sr. no	Service	User	Approved		Actic	'n	
No records found							

DISCLAIMER: The color theme and labels might differ in the screenshots as compared to on the platform. An asterisk (*) next to a label indicates that the information is mandatory.





Since no requests have been placed yet, the list will be empty if you just bought the platform and didn't choose to have dummy content provided by FATbit during the platform installation.

Kindly note that even minor edits made by the freelancer to the service package will require admin approval before being published on the platform.



Manage the admin approval for service packages under **Settings > System configurations > Common settings tab > Service package approval settings**.

	ce package requests and manage all the service package requests submitted by freelancers.	ŕ			
A Once	e a request has been approved, it cannot be declined.				×
🛕 Appr	rove the service requests that you want to publish on the platform.				
Home / S	Service package requests				
Searc	h				Q
Sr. no	Service	User	Approve	ed Action	ı
1	Professional Pest Control Services – Safe, Effective & Affordable	Alex Jones	Pending	0	ľ
2	SEO Content Writing Service	Kanishk	Approve	ed O	

Once a request is placed by a freelancer, it will appear in the records.

To manage the requests placed, two action buttons are available beside each pending package request, while only the View button is available for approved requests.

Click view button Onext to a package to see its related information.

To change the status of a package, click the **edit button** *t* next to it.

This will open the Update Status form.



Update status	×
Status*	
Select	~
Update	

- **Status***: Set the status of the package request.
 - Approved: Select this option to approve the request and publish the package on the platform.
 - **Rejected:** Select this option to decline the request, preventing the package from being published.
 - Canceled: Select this option to revoke the request if it is no longer required.

Once done, click **Update**.

The form will automatically close and the package status will be updated accordingly.

Follow the same process to set the status for package requests submitted by freelancers.



Refer to the Admin manual to learn more about all the features under this page.



You are set to begin!

These initial steps will help you set up the platform roughly and make it live.

However, you are still required to configure all the **Settings** & manage all the modules to set up the platform completely.

Refer to the Admin manual to know more!

x——x

Yo!Gigs - Online Service Marketplace Solution

Visit https://www.yo-gigs.com/ to know more!



www.fatbit.com | sales@fatbit.com

Contact us

+91 95555 96666 / +91 73075 70707

Copyright ©FATbit Technologies (Ably Soft Pvt. Ltd). All Rights Reserved.

The information contained in this document represents the current views, requirements as interpreted by FATbit Technologies for its clients. All information contained within this document is proprietary to us, unauthorized disclosure, distribution of the information contained either in part or as a whole shall not be accepted and shall be considered a breach of Copyright and Intellectual rights.